BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U72900KA2018FTC109343

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 5™ Annual General Meeting of Billionbrains Garage Ventures
Private Limited (‘the Company”) will be held on Monday, September 25, 2023 at 05:00 P.M. at the
Registered Office of the Company at Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Survey No. 16/1
and 17/2, Ambalipura Village, Varthur Hobli, Bangalore — 560 103 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.  To receive, consider and adopt

a) the Audited Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 and the Statement of Profit and
Loss of the Company for the year ended on that date, together with the Auditor’s Report
thereon and the Directors” Report attached therewith.

b) The Audited Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 and the Statement of Profit
and Loss of the Company for the year ended on that date, together with the Auditor’s Report
thereon attached therewith.

2. To consider re-appointment of M/s. BSR & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, (having Firm
Registration No. 101248W/W-100022) as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the period of 5
years and to fix their remuneration.

3. To appoint Mr. Ishan Bansal (DIN: 06538822) as Director and in this regard to consider and, if
thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Myr. Ishan Bansal (DIN: 06538822) who was appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company w.e.f. March 27, 2023 and whose term of appointment expires at this
Annual General Meeting, being eligible be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the
Company.”

4. To appoint Mr. Neeraj Singh (DIN: 07701992) as Director and in this regard to consider and, if
thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mpr. Neeraj Singh (DIN: 07701992) who was appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company w.e.f. March 27, 2023 and whose term of appointment expires at this
Annual General Meeting, being eligible be and is hereby appointed as a Direcior of the
Company.”
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BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U72900KA2018FTC109343

5. To alter Object Clause of Memorandum of Association and in this regard, to pass with or without
modification/s following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 13 and all other applicable

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made therve under and subject to approval
of Registrar of Companies, Bangalore, Clause ‘3rd A’ of the Memorandum of Association of the
Company be and is hereby altered by inserting sub-clause (10) after sub-clause (9) under the
heading ‘The Objects to be pursued by the Comparny on its Incorporation are’ as stated
hereunder:

(10) To act as a sponsor and settlor to mutual funds, pooled investment funds, financial and
securities related business and fo promote, organize, manage and carry mutual fund and other

pooled investment activities, operations and investments.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and the Company Secretary of the
Company be and are hereby severally authorized to sign and submit necessary e-forms with the
Registrar of Companies and with such other authorities as may be required and to accept such
modification, alteration as may be suggested by the office Registrar of Companies, and to do such
other acts, things, matters and deeds as may be required in order to give effect to the above

resolution.”
Registered Office: By order of the board
Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

3rd Floor, Survey No. 16/1 and 17/2,

Ambalipura Village, Varthur Hobli, W

Bangalore — 560 103

Harsh Jain

Director

Dated: July 13, 2023 DIN: 05321547
Add.: Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor,

Place: Bangalore Survey No. 16/1 and 17/2, Ambalipura Village,

Varthur Hobli, Bangalore — 560 103
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BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U/72900KAZ018FTC109343

NOTES:

1. Explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed hereto as Annexure
L

2. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM”) and may appoint a proxy to
attend and vote on his behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Proxies in order to be
effective must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.
Except in case of shorter notice which is for a period lesser than 48 hours, in such cases, the instrument
appointing proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company forthwith.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more
than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more
than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person
as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

The Proxy Form is annexed hereto as Annexure IL.

3. Corperate Members are required to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution, pursuant to Section 113 of
the Companies Act, 2013, authorizing their representatives to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

4. TheRegister of Directors and their shareholding, maintained u/s 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Register
of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained w/s 189 of the Companies Act,
2013 and all other documents referred to in the notice and explanatory statement, will be available for
inspection by the members of the Company at Registered office of the Company during business hours 10:00
A M. to 06:00 P.M. (except Saturday and Sunday) up to the date of Annual General Meeting and will also be
available during the Annual General Meeting.

5.  Entry to the place of meeting will be regulated by an Attendance Slip which is annexed hereto as Annexure
IIT to the Notice. Members/Proxies attending the meeting are kindly requested to complete the enclosed
Attendance Slip and affix their signature at the place provided thereon and hand it over at the entrance.

6. Route map and landmark details for the venue for the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company are

as below:
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BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U72900KA2018FTC109343

Annexure I

Explanatoryv Statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

Item No. 3: Appointment of Mr. Ishan Bansal (DIN: 06538822) as Director:

Mr. Ishan Bansal (DIN: 06538822) was appointed as an Additional Director pursuant to section 161 of
the Companies Act, 2013 w.e.f. March 27, 2023. His term of appointment as an Additional Director
expires at ensuing Annual General Meeting. Considering his knowledge and expertise, the Board of
Directors of the Company is of the opinion that he must continue the Board as Director.

Except Mr. Ishan Bansal, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
relatives or any other officials of the Company as contemplated in the provisions of Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is, in any way, financially or otherwise, concerned or interested in the resolution
except proposed appointee.

Item No. 4: Appointment of Mr. Neeraj Sinsh (DIN: 07701992) as Director:

Mr. Neeraj Singh (DIN: 07701992) was appointed as an Additional Director pursuant to section 161 of
the Companies Act, 2013 w.e.f. March 27, 2023. His term of appointment as an Additional Director
expires at ensuing Annual General Meeting. Considering his knowledge and expertise, the Board of
Directors of the Company is of the opinion that he must continue the Board as Director.

Except Mr. Neeraj Singh, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
relatives or any other officials of the Company as contemplated in the provisions of Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is, in any way, financially or otherwise, concerned or interested in the resolution
except proposed appointee.

Item No. 5: Alteration of Object Clause of Memorandum of Association:

The Company at it Board Meeting held on July 13, 2023 approved the proposal to acquire Groww Asset
Management Limited (“AMC™) and Groww Trustee Limited (“Trustee Company™), the Investment
Manager and Trustee Company, respectively for Groww Mutual Fund (“GMF*) from Nextbillion
Technology Private Limited (“NBT™).

The aforesaid acquisition shall result in a change in sponsor of GMF, which shall be subject to SEBI
approval.

In order to facilitate carrying out the said new activity, the Board intends to incorporate the said
activities in the main object clause of the Memorandum of Association and make necessary
modification in clauses of Matters which are necessary for furtherance of the objects. The Board is of
the opinion that it would be in the extensive benefit of the Company and the same will expand the area
of operation and shall add to the profitability of the Company.
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CIN: U72900KA2018FTC109343

Pursuant to Section 13 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules
made there under, the Company may change its object by passing a Special Resolution to that effect in
the General Meeting of the Company.

Amended copy of Memorandum of Association will be available for inspection of the members at the
Registered Office of the Company between 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. (except Saturday and Sunday) up
to the date of Annual General Meeting and will also be available during the Annual General Meeting.

The Directors, therefore, recommend the Special Resolution for approval of the sharecholders.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives or any of other

officials of the Company as contemplated in the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
is, in any way, financially or otherwise, concerned or interested in the resolution.

Registered Office: By order of the board
Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
3rd Floor, Survey No. 16/1 and 17/2, R
Ambalipura Village, Varthur Hobli, M«IOL/ ‘
Bangalore — 560 103
Harsh Jain
Director
Dated: July 13, 2023 DIN: 05321347
Add.: Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor,
Place: Bangalore Survey No. 16/1 and 17/2, Ambalipura Village,

Varthur Hobli, Bangalore — 560 103

Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Sarjapur Main Road, Bengaluru, Karnataka -560103
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BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U72900KA2018FTC109343

Details of Director being re-appointed at the Annual General Meeling as required under
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2).

Name of the Director Ishan Bansal Neeraj Singh

Director’s Identification | 06538822 07701992

Number

Date of Birth 10-04-1988 06-03-1983

Age 35 years 40 vears

Qualification BE, PGDM and CFA charter | BE degree in Information
holder Technology from ITM,

Gwalior, and a PG Diploma in
Advanced Computing from

CDAC.
Experience Over a decade of experience Close to two decades of
experience
Nature of expertise He has experience in investment | More than 16 vyears of
banking and corporate | experience in consumer
development, primarily in the | technology.
financial services and
technology sector.
Terms and conditions of re- | Executive Director Executive Director
appointment along with
details of remuneration
sought to be paid
Remuneration last drawn | Remuneration- 144 Remuneration- 169
(INR in Lakhs) Director Remuneration- 3 Director Remuneration- 3
Date of appointment on | March 27, 2023 March 27, 2023
Board
No. of Shares held Nil Nil
Relationship with  other | NA NA
directors and Key

managerial Personnel
No. of Board Meetings | NA (appointed on March 27, | NA (appointed on March 27,

attended in 2022-23 2023) 2023)

No. of companies in which he | 1 3

holds directorship

Membership / Chairmanship | NA NA

of Committees in other

Companies

Registered Office: By order of the board
Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

3rd Floor, Survey No. 16/1 and 17/2,
Ambalipura Village, Varthur Hobli,

’\[D.[—"A
Bangalore — 560 103 W et

Harsh Jain

Director

Dated: July 13,2023 DIN: 05321547
Add.: Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor,

Place: Bangalore Survey No. 16/1 and 17/2, Ambalipura Village, Varthur

Hobli, Bangalore — 560 103
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Annexure II

Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the member (s):
Registered address:
[E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Id:

DP ID:

I/'We, being the member (s) of ............. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint

1. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:
or failing him

2. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:
or failing him

3. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company, to be held on Monday, September 25, 2023 at 05:00 p.m. at the Registered
Office of the Company at Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Survey No. 16/1 and 17/2,
Ambalipura Village, Varthur Hobli, Bangalore — 560 103 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of

such resolutions as are indicated below:

a. the Audited Standalone Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2023 and the Statement of Profit and Loss of

Resolution Resolutions For Against
No.
1 To receive, consider and adopt

Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Sarjapur Main Road, Bengaluru, Karnataka -560103

email: corp.secretarial@groww.in Tel:080-69601300




BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U72900KA2018FTC109343

the Company for the year ended on that date,
together with the Auditor’s Report thereon and the
Directors” Report attached therewith.

b. the Audited Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2023 and the Statement of Profit and
Loss of the Company for the year ended on that
date, together with the Auditor’s Report thercon.

2 To consider re-appointment of M/s. BSR & Co LLP,

Chartered Accountants, (having Firm Registration No.

101248W/W-100022) as Statutory Auditors of the

Company for the period of 5 years and to fix their

remuneration
3 To congider appointment of Mr. Ishan Bansal as Director
To consider appointment of Mr. Neeraj Singh as Director
5 To consider alteration of Object Clause of Memorandum
of Association
Signed this day of 2023
Affix
Signature of shareholder Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting. Except in case of shorter notice which is for a period lesser than 48 hours, in such cases,
the instrument appointing proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company
forthwith.
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Annexure II1
Attendance Slip
Shareholder’s Name:

Registered Folio: No. of shares held
Address:

I/We hereby record my / our presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on the
Monday, September 25, 2023 at 05:00 pm at the Registered office of the Company at Vaishnavi Tech
Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Survey No. 16/1 and 17/2, Ambalipura Village, Varthur Hobli, Bangalore
—560 103

Signature of Sharcholder / Proxy*

*Strike out whichever is not applicable.

Note:

1. Please complete this slip and handover at the entrance of the Meeting hall.
2. Members are requested to bring their copies of this Notice to the meeting.
3. A member may vote cither for or against each resolution.
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BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
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BOARD’S REPORT
To,

The Members,
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited (‘Company?)

Your directors have the pleasure of presenting the Fifth Annual Report together with Audited Financial
Statements for the financial year ended March 3 1,2023.

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Standalone Consolidated
Particulars As at March *As at March | As at March 31, | *As at March 31,
31,2023 31, 2022 2023 2022

Revenue from Operations 90,610 13,204 127,780 35,092
Other Income 10,408 5,361 15,001 7,627
Total Revenue 101,018 18,565 142,781 42,719
Less: Total Expenses 59,198 42,655 93,291 66,366
Profit/ (Loss) before 41,820 (24,090) 49,490 (23,647)
Tax
Add/(Less): Tax Expense 2,162 - 4,013 254
Profit/(Loss) after 39,658 (24,090) 44,877 (23,901)
Taxes

* Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary.

2. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited (“BGV" or “Company™) is a tech company with a primary
objective of building a tech platform for a bouquet of financial products for its subsidiaries & group companies.
The Company operates web and app-based technology platform ‘Groww’. Currently, Groww app is one of the
fastest-growing investment platforms in India.

3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There has been no change in business during the year under review.

4. DIVIDEND:

The Board does not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2022-2023

5.  RESERVES:
The Company has not transferred any amount to Statutory Reserves, for the financial year 2022-23

Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Sarjapur Main Road, Bengaluru, Karnataka -560103
email: corp.secretarial@groww.in Tel:080-69601300



6. DETAILS REGARDING SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AND
JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES:

During the year, the Company had acquired 100% stake in Finments Tech Private Limited (Formerly known
as Finvantage Investment Adviser Private Limited) and also incorporated (2) two wholly owned subsidiaries
i.e. Groww AA Private Limited and Groww Insurance Broking Private Limited.

As on March 31, 2023, your Company has 8 (eight) subsidiaries viz; Nextbillion Technology Private Limited,
Groww Serv Private Limited (F. ormerly known as Billionbrains Capital Private Limited), Neobillion Fintech
Private Limited, Billionblocks Finsery Private Limited, Groww Pay Services Private Limited, Finments Tech
Private Limited (Formerly known as Finvantage Investment Adviser Private Limited), Groww AA Private
Limited and Groww Insurance Broking Private Limited.

Further Nextbillion Technology Private Limited has subscribed 100% stake in Groww IFSC Private Limited,
thus Groww IFSC Private Limited became a step-down subsidiary company. The Company does not have any
Associate or Joint Venture Company.

Pursuant to the first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 of Companies Act, 2013 read with theCompanies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, a statement containing the salient feature of the financial statement of a company’s
subsidiary or subsidiaries, associate company or companies and joint venture or ventures are attached herewith
in Annexure I in Form AOC 1

7.  HOLDING COMPANY:

Groww Inc., USA continues to be the Holding Company with 99.99% stake in the Company.

8. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 232 read with Section 234 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all
other applicable provisions, read with National Company Law Tribunal Rules, 2016 and Companies
(Compromise, Arrangement, and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and enabling provisions in the Company's
Memorandum and Articles of Association vide Board Resolution dated April 12,2023, the Board of Directors
of the Company has approved the Scheme of Amalgamation ("the Scheme") for amalgamation of Groww Inc,
USA, pursuant to the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, USA ("Transferor Company") with
and into Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited ("the Company") or ("Transferee Company™"). The
Company has filed the Scheme with National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), Bengaluru on April 24,
2023. Upon the NCLT approval on the proposed merger and effectiveness of the Scheme, the Company shall
allot the share in the ratio of 1:2.2 Le., for every One (1) common stock held in the Transferor Company, such
shareholders of the Transferor Company shall be allotted two point two (2.2) equity shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees
Ten) per share in the Transferee Company, for every One (1) founder common stock held in the Transferor
Company, such shareholders of the Transferor Company shall be allotted two-point two (2.2) class A equity
shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten) per share in the Transferee Company and for every One (1) preferred stock held



in the Transferor Company, such shareholders of the Transferor Company shall be allotted two point two (2.2)
preference shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten) per share in the Transferee Company, pursuant to the merger.

9. SHARE CAPITAL:

As on March 31, 2023, the issued, subscribed, and paid-up share capital of your Company stood at Rs.
68,10,00,950/- (Rupees Sixty-Eight Crore Ten Lakhs Nine Hundred and Fifty only), comprising of
6,81,00,095 (Rupees Six Crore Eighty-One Lakh and Ninety-Five) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten
only) each.

During the year under review, your company has increased its Authorised Share Capital from Rs. 1,00,00,000/-
(Rupees One Crore only) divided into 1,00,00,000 (One Crore) Equity Shares of Re. 1/- (Rupee One Only)
each to Rs. 75,00,00,000 (Rupees Seventy-Five Crores Only) divided into 75,00,00,000 (Rupees Seventy-Five
Crores Only) Equity Shares of Re. 1 (Rupee One Only) each.

The Company issued Bonus shares to the existing shareholders of the Company in the ratio of 1:609 i.e., 609
equity shares of nominal value Re. 1 (Rupee One only) each for every 1 equity shares of nominal value of Rs.
1 (Rupee One only), totaling to issuance of 67,98,84,555 (Sixty-Seven Crores Ninety-Eight Lakhs Eighty-
Four Thousand Five Hundred and Fifty-Five) equity shares on March 24, 2023. Thereby the equity share
capital of the Company increased from Rs. 11,16,394/- (Rupees Eleven Lakhs Sixteen Thousand Three
Hundred Ninety-Four only) to Rs. 68,1 0,00,950 (Rupees Sixty-Eight Crore Ten Lakhs Nine Hundred and F ifty
only) of Re. 1 (Rupee One only) each.

Further on March 27, 2023, the face value of equity shares of the Company was consolidated and increased
from Re. 1 each to Rs. 10 each. Thereby resulting in a change in the number of equity shares of Authorised
share capital of the company from 75,00,00,000 (Seventy-Five Crore) equity shares of Re. 1 each consolidated
to 7,50,00,000 (Seven Crore Fifty Lakhs) equity shares of Rs. 10 each. Consequently, the issued, subscribed
and paidup equity share capital of the Company was changed from 68,10,00,950 (Sixty-Eight Crore Ten Lakhs
Nine Hundred and Fifty only) equity shares of Re. 1 (Rupee One only) each to 6,81,00,095 (Six Crore Eighty-
One Lakh and Ninety-Five) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupee Ten only) each.

The Company has neither issued shares with differential voting rights or sweat equity. Further, the Company
has not bought back any of its securities.

10. DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

During the year, the Company has appointed Mr. Ishan Bansal and Mr. Neeraj Singh as an Additional Director
on March 27, 2023, holding the said office till the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Considering
their expertise and experience, your directors recommend their re-appointment as Directors of the Company
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting

Post completion of the financial year 2022-23, Mr. Roshan Dave has been appointed as the Company Secretary
of the Company w.e.f. May 2, 2023.



The status of the Company being a Private Limited Company, the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies
Act, 2013 relating to Key Managerial Personnel are not applicable to the Company.

11. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD:

During the financial year under review, the Company had 9 (Nine) Board meetings on 12-05-2022, 17-06-
2022, 07-09-2022, 30-09-2022, 03-11-2022, 09-12-2022, 07-02-2023, 24-03-2023 and 27-03-2023. The

necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. The maximum interval between any two meetings did not
exceed 120 days.

12.  STATUTORY AUDITORS AND STATUTORY AUDIT REPORT:

The shareholders of the Company in their Extra-Ordinary General meeting held on April 24, 2023, approved
the appointment of M/s. BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (101248W/W -100022) in order to fill the
casual vacancy caused due to the resignation of the auditors, M/s. BSR and Co, Chartered accountants.

The Board at its meeting held on May 24, 2023, recommended the appointment of M/s. BSR & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants, (101248W/W. -100022) the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the term of five
years from the Financial Year i.e., until the conclusion of the 10" Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be held in the year 2028.

The statutory auditors have confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing as auditors of the
Company.

The comments by the auditors in their report read along with information and explanation given in notes to
accounts are self-explanatory and do not call for further explanation.

13. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED / UNPAID AMOUNT TO_INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND:

Your Company did not have any funds as contemplated under Section 125 of the Act lying unpaid or unclaimed
for a period of seven years. Therefore, there were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

14.  INSTANCES OF FRAUD, IF ANY REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS:

There have been no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act,
2013.

15. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints
Committee (ICC) has been set up and trained to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All



employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. The company conducts
regular refreshers trainings for all employees and new joiners in compliance with the Act. There was no case
reported under the Act during the financial year under review.

16. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

. The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key business
objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through
mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

17. DETAILS ON CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO:

1. Conservation of energy

The operations of the Company, being financial services, require normal consumption of electricity. The
Company is taking every necessary step to reduce its consumption of energy.

2. Technology absorption

The Company is continuously making efforts for induction of innovative technologies and techniques required
for the business activities.

(1) the efforts made towards technology absorption: Nil

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution:
Nil

(ii1) Technology imported: Nil

3. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo

The Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during the year is as follows:

F Particulars Amount (Rs. In lakhs)
Foreign exchange earnings 48
Foreign exchange Outgo 3096.93

18. DEPOSITS:

During the year under report, your Company has not accepted any fixed deposits pursuant to Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Hence, disclosures as required pursuant to Rule 8(5)(v) of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 are not applicable for the financial year under review.



19. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, INVESTMENTS OR GUARANTEES UNDER SECTION 186 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The details of loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 during the year under review are disclosed under respective notes / schedules in the financial
statements.

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION:

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and
were in the ordinary course of the business. There are no materially significant related party transactions made
by the company with related parties which may have potential conflict with interest of the company at large.

The particulars of material contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred

to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are attached herewith in Annexure II in Form
AOC 2.

21. MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATOR/COURT:

During the year under review, there is no significant and material order passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

22. DISCLOSURE OF MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS:

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of
the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the Company.

23. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company complies with all the applicable Secretarial Standards, issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

24. FINANCE AND SHARE CAPITAL:

1. Issue of Equity Shares with Differential Voting Rights:
The Company has not issued equity shares with differential voting rights during the year, and hence the
disclosure requirements in this connection will not apply to the Company.

1. Issue of Sweat Equity Shares:
The Company has not issued sweat equity shares during the year, and hence the disclosure requirements in this
connection will not apply to the Company.

iii. Issue of Stock Options:
The Company has not issued employee stock options during the year.



25. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the requirement of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors’
Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

1. thatin the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

ii. that the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company as on March 3 1, 2023, and of the profit of the Company for the year ended
on March 31, 2023.

iii.  that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

iv.  that the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

v.  that the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

26. APPLICATIONS UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016:

There were no applications made by the Company or upon the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 during the year under review. There are no proceedings pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 by / against the Company as on March 31, 2023.

27. THE DETAILS OF ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT, IF ANY

During the year under review, there were no loan / borrowing taken from the Banks or Financial Institutions
hence, no comment is awarded with regard to the details of difference between amount of the valuation done
at the time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial
Institutions along with the reasons thereof.

28. ANNUAL RETURN:

The Company shall place its Annual Return on the website i.e., www.groww.in of the Company as required
under Section 92 read with Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 in due course of time.

29. _INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Internal Financial Controls laid down by the Company is a systematic set of controls and procedures to ensure
orderly and efficient conduct of its business including adherence to the Company's policies, safeguarding of
its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records
and timely preparation of reliable financial information. Internal financial controls not only require the system
to be designed effectively but also to be tested for operating effectiveness periodically.



The Board is of the opinion that internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements were
tested and reported adequate and operating effectively. The internal financial controls are commensurate with
the size, scale and complexity of operations.

30. DISCLOSURES:

The Company, being a Private Limited Company, is not required to comply with the clauses or provisions
under Companies Act, 2013 such as 1) Appointment of Independent Director (Section 149); 2) Formation of
Audit Committee (Section. 177); 3) Formation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee (Section 178); 4)
Undertaking formal Annual Evaluation of the Board and that of its Committees and the Individual Director
(Section 134); 5) Undertaking Secretarial Audit (Section 204); 6) Disclosure under section 197(12) with regard
to managerial and employee remuneration; 7) The Company is not covered under section 135 (Corporate Social
Responsibility).

31. COMPLIANCES UNDER FEMA:

The Company has in place the system of ensuring compliance with applicable provisions of Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999 and rules made thereunder and for certification from the Statutory Auditor of the
Company on an annual basis.

32. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation to the Customers, Employees, Suppliers,
Professionals, and Bankers to the Company for their Cooperation and contribution in the affairs of the
Company.

FOR BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Y N

/ £
Lalit Keshre arsh Jain
Director Director
DIN: 02483558 DIN: 05321547

Place: Bangalore Date: May 24, 2023



Form AQC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5
Statement containing salient features of the financial

Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs. )

Annexure I

of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 201 4)
statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

(Rs. in Lakhs)

SL. No. 1 R 3 4 5

Name of the subsidiary Nextbillion Neobillion Billionblocks Groww  Serv | Groww Pay
Technology Fintech Private | Finserv Private | Private Services  Private
Private Limited | Limited Limited Limited Limited

The date since when the 18-03-2021 12-02-2020 27-06-2020 03-06-2021 26-10-2021

subsidiary was acquired

Reporting period for the N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

subsidiary concerned, if

different from the holding

company’s reporting period

Reporting currency and N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

Exchange rate as on the last

date of the relevant financial

year in the case of foreign

subsidiary

Share capital 663 100 20 424 600

Reserves & surplus 58,339 3,306 (10) 43 1,992

Total assets 219,350 6,848 12 636 2,832

Total Liabilities 160,348 3,442 2 169 240

Investments 9,275 109 - 88 1,376

Turnover 125,816 2,210 16 1,437 373

Profit before taxation 9,764 (1,546) (29) (360) (77)

Provision for taxation 2,451 - - - -

Profit after taxation 7,313 (1,546) (29) (360) (77)

Proposed Dividend - - = - -

% of shareholding 99.99% 100% 100% 100% 100%




Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures
Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs. )

SL No. 6 7 8 9
Name of the subsidiary Groww AA | Groww  Insurance | Finments Tech | Groww IFSC
Private Limited Broking Private | Private Limited | Private Limited
Limited (Step-down
Subsidiary)
The date since when the 18-11-2022 22-12-2023 29-11-2016 02-08-2022
subsidiary was acquired
Reporting period for the From 18-11-2022| From 22-12-2023 to N.A. From 02-08-2022
subsidiary concerned, if to 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 to 31.03.2023

different from the holding
company’s reporting period

Reporting currency and - - - -
Exchange rate as on the last
date of the relevant financial
year in the case of foreign

subsidiary

Share capital 230 125 25 195
Reserves & surplus (5) &) (69) 4)
Total assets 231 122 40 194
Total Liabilities 6 1 84 3
Investments - - 2 -
Turnover - - - -
Profit before taxation (5) 4) (71) (6)
Provision for taxation - - - -
Profit after taxation (5) (4) (71) (6)
Proposed Dividend - - - —
% of shareholding 100% 100% 100% 99.99%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Billionblocks Finserv Pvt. Ltd.; Groww AA Pvt.
Ltd., Groww Insurance Broking Pvt. Ltd., Groww IFSC Pvt. Ltd., Finments Tech Private Limited

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: N.A.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures: NOT APPLICABLE
FOR BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE. VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

.. g
DIRECTOR DI OR:
LALIT KESHRE HARSH JAIN
DIN: 02483558 DIN: 05321547

Place: Bangalore Date: May 24, 2023



Annexure IT
Form AQC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions
under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis
There were no related party transactions which are not at arm’s length.
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis

(Rs. in lakhs)
(a)| Name(s) of the related party and nature of | Nextbillion Technology Private Limited

relationship
Subsidiary Company
(b)| Nature of contracts / arrangements / | Software, Server & Platform Charges
transactions
(¢) | Duration of the contracts / arrangements / | Continuous Ongoing Transactions
transactions

(d)| Salient terms of the contracts  or | Ordinary Business Transaction at arm’s
arrangements or transactions including the length
value, if any

Rs. 80,985
(¢) | Date(s) of approval by the Board Not Applicable
f) | Amount paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable

FOR BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE LIMI:I‘ED

W t
foder pr”

LALIT KESHRE HARSH JAIN
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
DIN: 02483558 DIN: 05321547

Place: Bangalore
Date: May 24, 2023
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BSR&Co. LLP

Chartefed Accountants

Embassy Golf Links Business Park,
Pebble Beach, B Block, 3rd Floor,
No. 13/2, off Intermediate.Ring Road,
Bengaluru 560 071 India

Tel: +91 80 4682 3000

Fax: +91 80 4682 3999

ndependent Auditors Report

To the Members of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

Report-on the Audit of the Standaione Financial Statements

flows. for the year-thén ended i to the standal

ry of significant accountifig policies and- other explanatory

It our opinion ang to the best of our information and_ according. to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act; 2013
{Acty in the manner so6 required and give & true and fair view in conforriity with the accounting principles.
generally'accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its profit and
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows forthe yearended on thst dafe.

‘We conducted 6ur audit in accordance with the Standards. on Auditing {SAs) _sp_e‘ci'ﬁed_- under

Section 143(10) of the-Act. Our responsibilities urider thiose SAs are further described in the Audifor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the ‘Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We: are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India'togethier with the ethical requiremerits thiat are refevant to.our audit of the stangalone
;_z'i_.stat_'ements-.uﬁderthe'pro_viSith“-bf'the-'Abt.-:anti"_the'Ru' & therei we have fulfi e

The Company's Management and Board of Directors a'r_e-_.re_spohsible for the-other information. The gther
information coriprises the. information included in the Company's directors’ report, but-does not inciude
the-financiat statements and auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standaione financial statements does not cover the other informiation and we do nat
express any form of assuranée conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is-to read thi other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the.
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtaingd in the. audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. ff, based on the work we have performed, we-conclude that there is & material
misstatement of this- other information, we are required to:report that fact. We have nothing to repor in

 this regard,

Re gis_lg'rgd_orncu.

8§ R & Co. japarnarship fan wit Registration No. BAGIZ2Y converded info. B 5 R & 54 LLF'fa  14th Flogr, Genva: B-iWing and Narth © Wing, NeseaIT Park 4, Nesca
Eimitad Lighly Dainarstipowtn P Regisiraton No. AAB-8184) with effact from Dotober 14, 2313 Canter, Weastern Expréss Highway, Goregaon (Easy, Mumba - 450063
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated-in Section
134(5) of the Actwith respectta the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give atrue
and-fair view of the state of ‘affairs, profit/ loss and other ‘comprehensive income; changés in-equity and

cash flows of the Company jn actordarice with the ‘accounting. priniciples generally accepted in ‘lndia,
including the- Indian Accounting Stendards (ind AS) specified .under Séction. 133 of the Act. This
responisibifity. also inciudes maintenance of ‘adequate accounting records in accordance with ‘the
provisions .0f the: Act“for safeguarding of the ‘dssets-of the ‘Company-and for preventing and detecting
frauds and.other irregularities:: selection and application. of appropriate accolnting policies; making
judgments aind estimates that are reasonable-and-prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate. internal financial'controls; that.were. oparat effectively for ensuring the accuracy -arid

aration and) ian. of the standalong:

completeness of the:accounting:records, relevant to:the preparation a the stand:
financial staterments that give a true:and fai view:and arg-free front material: misstaternent, whether due:

tofraud or erior.

Our objectives.are to obtain reasonable assurange about whether thie standalone financial statements as
& whole are frée from matefial misstatement, whether due-to fraud orerror, and to issue an auditor's report

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is:a high level of:-assurance, butis:not a-guarantes that:
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will aiways detect a material migstatement when. it exists.

Misstatémnents can arise from fraud orerror and are considered material if, individually or in'the aggregate:

they could reasonably be expected to. influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standaione financial statements,

-As.part of an‘audit in-accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism thraughait the: audit. We glso” '

*  Identify and assess the-risks.of material misstatemer

fraud or-err 5 d au

forgery, ifiteritional omissions, ristepresérntations, or the overrige 6f intemnal control

* . Oblainan understanding of irternal contral relevant to the audit in: order to designaudit procedures.
thatare appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 1 43(3)(i) of the Act, we are-also. responsible:
for expressing our opinion on whether the company-has adequate internal finaricial -confrols With
reférence to financial statements in place and the operating effactivenass of such-controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and-Beard of Directors.

*  Conciude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Difectors usé of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of standalone financial. statements -and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists refated to events or conditions that may cast-
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continug as a going concerh. If we conclude that a
miaterial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the standzlone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify’
our opinion, Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained dp to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or-conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
cancearn.
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BSR&Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

* Evaluate the overali presentation, structure and content of the standalone financia! statements,
inciuding the disclosures, and whethar'the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
tfransactions and events in & manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with'those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope:

and timing of the audit

and significant auditfindings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral

that-we identify durinig-our audit.

We also provide.those charged with gevernance with a statement:that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, -and 1o communicate with them all relationships and other
matters. that' may reascnably be thought ta bear on our independence; -and:where applicablg, related
safeguards. ' | | :

1. . As required. by the C_ompanies’-‘-('A._uditbr"s Reparf) Ordef; 2020 (‘the: Ord'e'r'-")' issted by the Central

Governmient of India in terms of Sedtion 143(11)'of the Act, we give'in the “Annexure A" a statemant
on the matters spetified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order; to-the extent applicable.

2 A As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repon-{h.at:

-a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were niecessary for the purposes.of our audit.

In-our apinion, proper books of acceunt as. required by law have been Kept by the Company so
far-as it appears from our examination of those books.

The standaione. balance sheet, the standa_i_qhe_---s_t'ater_nen_t- of profit and loss (including dther
cemprehensive. income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone
statemenit of.cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with thé books 6f acsodint:

In our:opinion, the aforesaid standalone financiat statemenits' comply with the Ind.AS: specified

¢ [br_sa:_'é;_s.{ o 31March Zﬂzztaken .
fisqualified as on 31 March 2023.
) of thie Act, '

ted as a director in terms of Section 164{;
With respect to the adegiscy of the internal -financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company-and the-operating effectiveness of such conitrgls, refer o our separate
Report in "Ahnexijre B". '

B. With respect to the-other matters to-be.included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 6f
the Companies. (Audit and Auditorsy Rules, 2014, in-our opinion and to the best of otir informiation and
according fo the éxplanations given-to us:

a.
k.

Thie Company does not have ary pending fitigations which would impact its financial position.
The'Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses,

There were no.amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Educaticn and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i} The managemerit has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief as disclosed in

‘the Note 30 to'the standaione financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
Page 3 of 10



BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(‘Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 30 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

=

(ii

(iif) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f.  As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company
only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 1 97(16)
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.|{101248W/W-100022

v

Rohit Alexander

Partner

Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 222515
Date: 28 May 2023 ICAI UDIN:23222515BGZACN2578
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BSR

& Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s. Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited for the year

ended

31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i (& {A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full parficulars, including ‘guantitative

- ®
() &)

().
(d

(€)

(ii) (a)

{b)

{b)

(iv)

v

-details-and situation of Property Plant: and Egulpment.
The:Company has maintained prdper records showing tull particulars of intangible assets.

According to the mformanon and explanamns given to us.and on.the basis.of pur exafmination
of the records.of the Cumpany‘ the Company: has a reguiar programme-of physica! verification
of its- Property. Plant and Equ pment by which. al! property, plant and - equipmérit arg. verified.in:
aphased mannerovera penod 6f3 years !n accordance with. lhIS programme; certain property,

plant and equipiment were verified: durmg the year in our opmlon “this: penodmlty of physma!'
ize pany and:-the natire of its.

venf catton i

reasonab!e ‘having

Accordmg io the mfarmatton and explanatmns gwen to us and Qi the basrs of our- exam:natmn
ofthe records of the Company, the Company Rasnot. revalued its’ Property Plant and Eguipment
(inchuding Right of Use assets) or mtanglb!e assets orboth during the year,

According to the. mformataon and explanations. giventio us and on'the basis of our: examination
of the records.of the: Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pendlng against the
Company for holdlng any -benami property under the. Prohib:tiun of Benami Property
Transactions: Act; 1988 and rulés made thereunder:

The Company. is a service company, primarify rendering: technology platform

- Services, Accordmgiy it does not hold any physical inventories, Accordingly; clause 3(n)(a) of

the Order is not applicable;

According to- the information.and explanations given.to us and on the basis of our exammatlon
of the records of the Company. the Company has not: heen‘-sanctxoned any wcrklng cap:tal Ilmlts
in excess offive crore_rupees il'l aggregate from. banks and fir j

:nvestments EI‘I campames :n respect of whic':h'the reqqulte ‘infotmation s as befow.. “The
Ccmpany has notmade any- :nvestments in firmis, fimited liability partriership o any other partles
Accordingly, provisions.of clauses 3(ii)a) ( {c),(dy and (8) of the Order are not applicable,

According to the informafian and explanatlons gwen to us-and- based on the audit procgdures

conducted by us, in our- opinion the investments made during the. year are, prima facie; not’

prejudicial to the interest of the. Company There-are no ‘guarantees provided, secunty given
duiring the year,

According to-the information and expiahations given to us-and on the basis of our examination
‘of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided -any
guarantee or security as.specified under Section 185and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act’), In respect of the investments made by the. Company; in our opinion the provisions of
Section 186 of the Act have been complied with,

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from

Page 5 of 10
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Biilionbrains Garage Venturés Private Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

the public. Accordirigly, ciause 3(v) of the Order s not applicable,

{vi) According to the information and explanafions- given to. us, the: Central Government has not
nrescribed the maintenance . of cost records under Section 148(1) -of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Oider is not applicable.

{vii) (a) The Company does nof have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added lax during the year sinde.effective 1 July 2017, these statutory -dues has been
subsumed into GST.,

Acearding to the infarmation and explanations given 10 us: and.on the-basis. of our examination
of the records of the. Company, in our opinion amounts deducted./ accrued in the books of
account in respect of tndisputed sta!utory dues including Goods. and Service Tax, Provident
Fund Employees State insurancee Inoom____ Tax-or Cass or other: statutory dues have generaily.
e w;th the appropr;ate ‘authorities, though there:have:
' ax. As explained-to: US, the..

1o and exp _ us and én: 1he bams of ou_re'” _r_mnatzon
_ __e-Company, na undzspoted amiounts. payablé i respect of Goods and-Service-
Tax Prowdent Fund Employees State Insurance, income-Tax or Cess or othar- statutory dues
were in.arrears as.at 31 March 2023 for a period. of more than six months from: the: date lhey
became payable,

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of aur examination
of the récords of the Company, there-are no statutory dues.retating to Income-Tax, which have
not been deposited with the appropriate. authorlties on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations-given to us and on the‘basis of our examination
of the records.of the Commpany, the Company has not surrendered or. dlscfosed any transactions.
previously unrecotded as income in.the-books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income- during the year,

{ixy (8)  According to the information.and explanations given ta us.and on the basis of our examination
of the records:of the Company, the Company did nof have any ieans:or; borrowings from any
fender” durlng the year, Accordingly, clause 3(ixj{a) of the Ordér is not applicable to the
Company.

'_'('b') Accordlng.:-_' d 3.or_1 the: bams of_'our examlnatlon:
of the. réesrds 6f 1k | red a wﬂfu!idefaulter by any
bank.or financial instifution or gouernment or government Authority.

tha jnformataon and: expianatlons

(¢}  According fo the.information and-expianatioris ; gwen o us by the management, the Company
has not obiained any termioans-during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(ey af the Ordens not
appiloable

(d)  The Company has not raised funds on shart term basis which have been utilised for long term.
pUrpcses.

(&)  According to the information and explanations given to us and 6n an overall éxamination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, we repoftthat the Company has riot taken any
funds fron any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of ifs subsidiaries as.
gefined under the Act;

() According ta the information.and explanations ¢ given'to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the vear on the pledge of securifies held-in-
its subsidiaries (as defined under the Act).

(x){a) . The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{mcludlng debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x}){a) of the Order is not apphcable
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BSR&Co LLP

Annexure A to the Independént Auditor's Report on the Standalone Financiai
Statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (Continiied)

{b)

(i) (&)

(0)

(©)

(xif)

(xii)

(xiv) (a)

()

{xv)

(xvi) ()

{b)

{d}

(xvi)
(i)

{xix)

According fo the informaticn ard explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has:not made any preferential allotrent or private
placement of shares or fully.or partly convertible débentures duringihe year, Accordang{y clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records. of the Company and according to the
informationi and éxplanations given o us, no: fraud by the Company. of on the Company has

‘been-noticed or reported during the course of the audit,

Accordlng to the |nformat;on and explanations given to us, no report. under sub- section { (12) of
Section 143 of the.Act has.been filed by the suditors-in Form ADT-4'as prescribed under Rule
13. ofthe Comparies: (Auditand Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Goverriment.

‘Based on the information and explanahoos pravided: fo- us, the Company does not have a \ngul

mechamsm and ES not required fo; have a "g| ]

_ Cmpanysfawa _ Cmpany

The Company _';a'prwate ||mzted company and accordlngly the : requ:remenis as si:pulated by
the provisions.of Section 177 of the Act. are not applicable-to the Company In our opinion-and
according to the information.and’ explanat:oos .given to-us and on the basis of our exarmination
of records of the Compariy, transagtions with the related partiés.are in compliance with Section
188 of the Att where applicable and details of such transactsons have-heen disclosed in the
standaione financiai. statements as requ:red by the applacable accounting standards,

Based oninfarmationaind explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our oplmon
the Company has an internal audit system commensirate- with the size and nature of its
business,

We have cansidered the internal audit reports of the' Company issued til} date for the period
under audiit.

In our opinion and according to the infarmation and- explanahons given to us, the Company has
not enteredirito.: any non-cash transactions with its directors or p persons. connected terits direclors

-and hence; prowsmns of Section 182 of the Act dre nol___ pplicableto the Company

3The Company is not reqwred fo.be: reglstered under Sect;on 45 A of lhe Reserve Bank. of tndia.

Act, 1934 Accordmgiy, clause 3{xvi}{b) of the Order |s not appl:cable

The Company'is not:a Core Investment: Company (CIC) as defined inthe regulations made by
the -Reserve Bank.of India. Accordmgly. clause 3(xvi}{c) of the Order is-not applicable.

‘The Company is not part-of any group (a8 per the provisions of the Gare Investment Comparies
(Reserve. Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordmgiy. the requirements of -clause
3(xvi}(d) are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash josses in the current financial year. However, the Company.
has incurred-cash losses of INR. 24,000 lakhs inthe immediately preceding financial year.

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and we have duly taken
into consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis.of the finangcial ratios,

-ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financiai hahll:tles
other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the

Board of Directors and management plans and based 6n our examination of the evidence
Page 7 of 10



BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chantered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

P
R
Rohit Alexander
Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 222515
Date: 28 May 2023 ICAI UDIN:23222515BGZACN2578
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial
statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone
financial statements under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A){f) under ‘Report on. Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We :'have:_ga'ud_ited1_'_t_hé‘-in’t_ér’ﬁ_’ai-;ﬁnér_’;i::_‘;é_ll controls with- faf:e__r_eng_g:_--'.io._. _ﬁ_ﬁ_a_a_n_c@i '_staijeha__en{js'_ of Biflionbiains.
Garage Ventures Private Limited (‘thie Company”) 45 of:31:March.2023 it conjunction with our-audit'of -
the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended oni'that daté.

The Company’s Management and the Board of Diractors are responsible for establishing :and maintaining
internal financial controls based:on the:internal financial controls with reference. to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential componénts of internal control stated i the
‘Guidance Note. These responsibilities.incluge the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were bperating effectively for ensuring the orderly-and efficient conduct of
its ‘business, including adherence to company's policies; the safeguarding of its:assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and:errors, the accuracy and completensss of the -accounting recoids, and the

tirmely preparation.of reliable fiancial information, as.required under the Act,

plan-and.per thie aud el
reasonable- assurance about:- whather -adequat vternal financial. controls. with refererice to: financial
statemienits were' established-and maintaied and i sich controls: aperated effectively ‘i all matesial
respects.

Qur-auditinvalves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence: about the. adequacy of the iriternal
financial Controls with reference to financial staterents-and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial cantrols with reference to finaricial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statemerits, assessing the risk that-a materiai
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contrel
based on e assessed risk: The procedures sélected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
-assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
ouraudit gpinion on the Company's internal financiat contrals with reference to financial statements.

‘Page 9 of 10




BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial
statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-1[00022

X

Rohit Alexander

Partner

Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 222515
Date: 28 May 2023 ICAI UDIN:23222515BGZACN2578
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Standalone Balance sheet as at 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes adnt At
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3A 1,341 864
Right-of-use assets 4 2,712 -
Intangible assets 3B 47 -
Financial assets
i.  Investments 5 100,801 61,180
iv. Other financial assets 9 11,077 135,874
Total non-current assets 115,978 197,918
Current assets
Financial assets
i. Investments 6 76,650 23,980
ii. Trade receivables T 29329 14,080
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 8A 64 2,305
iv. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 8B 53,592 10,506
v. Other financial assets 9 25,666 3,160
Current tax asset (net) 22 1,093 923
Other current assets 10 1,133 7,590
Total current assets 187,527 62,544
Total assets 303,505 260,462
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 11 6,810 11
Other equity 12 279,398 246,506
Total equity 286,208 246,517
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 14 387 202
Lease liabilities 4 1,834 -
Total non-current liabilities 2,221 202
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 4 1,017 -
Trade payables
i. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 13 - 1
ii.Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 13 7,973 12,337
Provisions 14 41 10
Other current liabilities 15 6,045 1,395
Total current liabilities 15,076 13,743
Total liabilities 17,297 13,945
Total equity and liabilities 303,505 260,462
2

Significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

fon BSR & Co. LLP
CHartered Accountafjts
Fifm Registration Njimber: 101248W/W-100022

7

Rohit Alexande
Partner
Membership No. : 222515

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 28, 2023

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

CIN: U72900KA2018FTC109343 .
PZ‘J"/J/ /

Lalit Keshre &Hfd\h.h{:

Director Director

DIN; 2483558 DIN: 05321547

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 28, 2023

Place: Bengaluru

Roshan Dave
Company Secretary
Membership No. A26472

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2023  Date: May 28, 2023



Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Standalone Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Revenue from operations 16 90,610 13,204
Other income 17 10,408 5,361
Total income 101,018 18,565
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 18 25,727 16,181
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 19 1,177 279
Finance cost 20 194 -
_Other expenses 21 32,101 26,195
Total expenses 59,198 42,655
Profit/(Loss) before income tax 41,820 (24,090)
Tax expense
Current tax 22 2,162 -
Deferred tax 22 - -
Total tax exy 2,162 -
Profit/(Loss) for the year 39,658 (24,090)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined employee benefit plans 33 (13)
Income tax relating to above - &
Other comprehensive income /(loss), net of tax 33 (13)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year 39,691 (24,103)
Earnings per equity share in INR 26
(Face value: INR 10/~ (31 March 2022: INR 1/~ per share)
Basic 58.28 (35.40)
Diluted 58.28 (35.40)
Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
fol BSR & Co. LLP Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

CIN: U72900KA2018FTC109343 i

Y7

Rohit Alexander Lalit Keshre Harsh Jain Roshan Dave

o>

| Partner Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. : 222515 DIN: 2483558 DIN: 05321547 Membership No. A26472
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai

Date: May 28, 2023 Date: May 28, 2023 Date: May 28, 2023 Date: May 28, 2023



Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

Standalone Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

(41l amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Amount (Rs)
As at 1 April 2021 10
Issue of equity shares 1
As at 31 March 2022 11
Issue of equity shares %
Issue of bonus shares 6,799
As at 31 March 2023 6,810
B. Other equity
Reserves and surplus
PRl Securities Premium  Retained earnings L
As at 1 April 2021 94,502 (11,353) 83,149
Loss for the year - (24,090) (24,090)
Other comprehensive income - (13) (13)
Securities premium on issue of equity shares 187,460 - 187,460
As at 31 March 2022 281,962 (35,456) 246,506
Profit for the year - 39,658 39,658
Other comprehensive income - 33 33
Securities premium utilised on issue of bonus shares (6,799) - (6,799)
As at 31 March 2023 275,163 4,235 279,398

Significant accounting policies (Refer Note 2)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
artered Accpuntants
m Registrat®n Number: 101248W/W-100022

Rohit Alexander
Partner
Membership No. : 222515

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 28, 2023

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

CIN: U72900KA2018FTC109343 [

Ny

Lalit Keshre
Director
DIN: 2483558

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 28, 2023

N

.

\ f L)
VN

Harsh Jain Roshan Dave
Director Company Secretary
DIN: 05321547 Membership No. A26472

Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2023 Date: May 28, 2023



Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

Standalone Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

(AN amonnts are in INR Lakls untesy othenviye statedd)

Particulars

For the yvear ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/ (Loss) before income tax

Adjustments:

Interest Income on term deposits

Interest on unwinding of commercial paper
Interest income on non convertible debentures
Net gain on fair value changes

Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Provision for loss allowance

Reversal of provision for loss allowances
Interest income security deposit

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in ather current liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in provisions

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid, net of refund

Net cash used in operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Investment in subsidiary and others
Investment in mutual fund

Proceeds from sale of mutual fund
Investment in commercial paper
Redemption of commercial paper
Investment in non convertible debentures
Redemption of non convertible debentures
Bank deposit placed

Redemption of bank deposits

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Cash fows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares
Repayment of lease liabilities

Interest payment on lease liabilities

Net cash from financing activities (C)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and eash equivalents at end of the year

A7
{ «

\

.

41,820 (24,000)
(6.884) (4,420
(1.972) (204)
(1,105) .
(301) (735)
1,177 279
- 70
(13) &
(22) 5
194 ,
32,804 (29,101)
(15.249) (13,119)
664 (3,940)
6.471 (4,150}
(4,369) 10,063
4,650 1,250
250 120
15312 (38,876)
(2,332) (820)
22,981 (39,696)
(1.004) (758)
1 -
(50) "
(17,121 (34.402)
(119,342) (127,800)
131,618 115,268
(69.009) (7.000)
19,159 g
(40,500) £
3,000 =
(118,368) (148,229)
179.014 49,105
7,920 5,604
(24,683) (148.212)
2 187,461
(343) B
(194) "
(539) 187,461
(2,241) (447)
2.305 2,752
64 2,305




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Standalone Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

Balances with banks in current accounts

Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 8A)

Motes:

64

2,305

64

2,305

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect method™ as set out on the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7) Statement of Cash Flows,

P

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standal

Significant accounting policies (Refer Note 2)
As per our report of even date

SR & Co. LLP
tered Accountants
Regstration umber 101248 W/W-100022

)

hit Alexandeér
er
embership No. : 222515

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 28, 2023

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

Lalit Keshre
Director
DIN: 2483558

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 28, 2023

arsh Jain
Director
DIN: 05321547

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 28, 2023

\ W\x&\)

Roshaii Dave
Company Secretary

Membership No.
A26472

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2023



Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate Information

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Lumited (“the Company’) was incorporated as a private limited company on 9th January 2018 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited is a subsidiary of M's. Groww Ine, Delaware, United States of America.

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited is primarily engaged in carrying out the business of software designing, maintenance, testing and benchmarking,
designing, developing computer software and solutions, carry on the business of providing, building. organizing of software tools, marketing and innovatization of
hicensed software, consultancy services. The company operates the web & app based technology platform, “Groww™

2. Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation and presentation
The financial statements of the Company comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounti ng Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the *Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements as notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Profit and Loss and disclosures are presented in the format preseribed under Division 11 of
Schedule [T of the companies Act, as amended from time to time that are required to comply with Ind AS. The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per
the requirements of Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on accrual basis, except for certain financial assets and habilities, defined
benefit plan habilities and share-based payments being measured at fair value

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR (Rs ), which is also its
functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 are being authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 24 May 2023

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial sta ts for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amonnts are m INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
2, Significant accounting policies (Continued)

a. Property, plant and equipment

i. Recagnition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumnulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount.

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost comprises acquisition cost, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met, and directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only
when it is probable that future cconomic benefit associated with these will flow with the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Capital work-in-progress are property, plant and equipment which are not yet ready for their intended use. Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding
at cach reporting date are shown as other non-financial assets. Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in progress until construction and installation is completed
and assets are ready for its intended use.

Items of Property, plant and equipment that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net book value or net realisable
value and are shown separately in the financial statements, if any.

it.  Depreciation

Depreciation provided on property, plant and equipment is caleulated on a straight line basis (changed from written down value basis followed in earlier financial years)
using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives specified in Schedule 11 of the Act,

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset Useful life
Computers, Laptops and Peripherals 3 years
Furnitures & Fixtures 10 years
Office Equipments 5 years
Networking equipments 6 years

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided up to the date of
disposal. The residual values, estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
changes if any, are accounted for on a prospective basis.

Improvements to leasehold premises are amortised over the lease term or useful lives of the assets, whichever is lower,
iii.  De-recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal,
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition, disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised net, within “Other Income™ or “Other Expenses”, as the case maybe, in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the vear of derecognition, disposal or retirement.




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounis are in INR Lakhs unless atherwise stated)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

b. Intangible assets

i. Recoegnition and measurement

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable ta it will
flow to the Company. Intangible assets are capitalised at cost of acquisition including cost atiributable to readying the asset for use. Intangible assets acquired separately

are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. The useful life of these
i ible assets is esti 1 at 10 years with zero residual value.

o

i, Amaortisation

Amortisation is provided using the straight-line method on the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives and is included in the statement of profit and
loss.

¢. Revenue from Contracts with customers

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Ind
AS 113, Revenue from contracts with customers, outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes
current revenue recognition guidance found within Ind ASs of accounting on accrual basis. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the
goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind AS 115;

Step 1. Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets
out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the
customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates
the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company recognises revenue from the following sources:

(a) Income from tech platform services is recognised upon completion of services, in accordance with the terms of contract.

(b) Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate method.

{c) Advances received from customers in respect of contracts are treated as liabilities and adjusted against billing as per terms of the contract.
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al connts are n INR Lakhs andess otherwise stated)

2, Significant ace ing policies (Conti 1)
d. Financial instruments
i. Date of Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company's balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument,

i, Initial Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities, deposits and borrowings are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Recognised financial instruments are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

iii. Classification and Subsequent Measurement

A. Financial assets

Based on the business model, the contractual characteristics of the financial assets and specific elections where appropriate, the Company classifies and measures
financial assets in the following categories -

a) Amortised cost: A financial assets is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at Fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL):
+ the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows {'Asset held to collect contractual cash flows'); and
* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest ('SPPI') on the principal
amount outstanding.
After initial measurement and based on the assessment of the business model as asset held 1o collect contractual cash flows and SPPI, such financial assels are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate {‘EIR’) method, Interest income and impairment expenses are recognised in profit or loss. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the EIR method, Any gain and loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

The EIR method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest over the relevant period. The EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash flows (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the EIR, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the contractual
cash flows and to sell the assets, (‘Contractual cash flows of assets collected through hold and sell model’) and contractual cash flows that are SPPI, are subsequently
measured at FVOCIL Movements in the carrying amount of such financial assets are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (*OCI®), except interest / dividend
income which is recognised in profit and loss. Amounts recorded in OCI are subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss in case of debt instruments
however, in case of equity instruments it will be directly transferred to reserves, Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment,

¢) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial assets, which do not meet the eriteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI or either designated,
are measured at FVTPL. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss. The Company records investments in equity instruments and mutual funds at
FVTPL.
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amonnts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stared)
2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

B. Financial liabilities
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either finaneial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

(a) Equity Instrument - An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company is recognised at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

(b) Financial Liabilities Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amounts are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently determined
based on the EIR method. Interest expense is recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of financial liabilities is also recognised in profit or
loss. The Company does not have any financial liability which are measured at FVTPL,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial
instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 : Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to
at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards 1o the volume and liquidity of the identical
assets or liabilitics and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date,

Level 2 : Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire
period of the instrument’s life,

Level 3 : Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole,

Based on the Company’s business model for managing the investments, the Company has classified its investments and securities for trade at FVTPL. Investment in
subsidiaries is carried at deemed cost (previous GAAP carrying amount) as per Ind AS 27.

Financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. For trade and other payables, the carrying amount approximates the fair value
due to short maturity of these instruments.

iv. Reclassification:
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or
terminates a business line or in the period the Company changes its busi model for ing financial assets. Financial labilities are not reclassified.

v. Derecognition:
(A) A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when;
* The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or
» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the assel.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for the amount it may have to pay,

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carryving amount allocated to the portion of the asset
derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in OCI is recognised in profit or loss (except for equity instruments measured at FVOCI)

(B) A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms. or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modificd, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liabi lity. In this case, a new financial Hability based on the modified terms is recognised
at fair value. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or
loss

vi. Offsetting:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when. and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or 1o realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously,

Q-
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Standal financial stat ts for the year ended 31 March 2023

(AN amownts are in INR Lakhs wiless otherwise stated)
2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
vii. Impairment of financial assets:

A, Trade receivables
The Company applies the Ind AS 109 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance (ECL) for all trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLS at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition,
To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rates are
based on average of historical loss rate adjusted to reflect current and available forward looking information affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

B. Other Financial Assets
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows,

e, Employee Benefits
i. Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits include salaries and short-term bonus, A liability is recognised if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this

amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably. These costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss at the undiscounted amount expected to be paid over the period of services rendered by the employees to the Company.

it. Gratuity
Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for cach completed year of service in line with The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The
same is payable at the time of separation from the Company or retirement, whichever is earlier. The benefit vest after five years of continuous service.

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount
of future benefit that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior period, Such benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and
the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit credit Method which recognises each
period of services as giving rise to additional unit of employee bencfit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.
The obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The discounted rates used for determining the present value are based on the market yields

on Government Securities as at the balance sheet date.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in
other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet,

fii. Provident fund

The contribution to provident fund is considered as defined contribution plan. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.
The Company recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al comennis are i INR Lakhs unless otherwive sherted)
2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
iv. Compensated absence

The eligible employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in future service periods or receive cash compensation
on annual basis or on termination of employment whichever is earlier. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the
employee renders the services that increase the entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of unutilised leave balance in the statement of profit and loss as and
when they are incurred,

v. Share based payment arrangements

The cost of equity settled share-based payment transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the options using option pricing model at the
date on which the options are granted which takes into account market conditions and non-vesting conditions.

The fair value is expensed over the period until the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding liability to pay Ultimate Holding Company based on a cost recharge
arrangement.

f. Borrowing costs

Expenses related to borrowing cost are accounted using effective interest rate. Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to
foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. The difference between the discounted amount
mobilised and redemption value of commercial papers is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the life of the instrument using the EIR.

#. Foreign Exchange Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on settlement of revenue
transactions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Monetary assets and liabilities contracted in foreign currencies are restated at the rate of exchange ruling at
the Balance Sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction,

h. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains 2 lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right 1o control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assets, the Company assess whether
(i) the contract involves the use of an identified assets: (ii) the Company has substantially all the economic benefits from use of the assets through the period of the lease
and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset,

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use assets (ROU) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it
is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 month or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options
when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The cost of the night-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the inception date of the
lease, less any lease incentives received. Subsequently, the right-of-use assets is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impatrment losses,
if any. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use
assets,

For lease habilities at inception, the C ompany measures the lease lability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease pavments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily determined. If that rate is not readily determined the lease payments are discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease liability has been included in borrowing and ROU asset has been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have heen classified as himancing
cash fows,




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Standal financial nts for the year ended 31 March 2023

(AN amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise steted)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

i. Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.
J- Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obl igation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate
of the expenditure required 10 settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to effect current management estimates.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes forming part of financial statements, Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the
financial statements. Contingent liabilities are recognised when there is possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
gccurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

k. Income Tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in

equity or in OCL.

{i) Current Tax

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income for the year in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961, Current tax comprises
the expected lax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate,

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it intends to realise the
asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

(i) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements,

Deferred tax assets arising mainly on account of carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws are recognised only if there is reasonable certainty of
its realisation, supported by convincing evidence,

Deferred tax assets on account of other temporary differences are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will
be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. Changes in
deferred tax assets / liabilities on account of changes in enacted tax rates are given effect o in the standalone statement of profit and loss in the period of the change. The
carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set when there is a legally enforceable right 1o set-off assets against liabilities representing current tax and where
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws,
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Notes to the Standalone financial for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs wnless otherwise stated)

2, Significant accounting policies (Continued)

I Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and balance with bank in current accounts, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the
purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents cash and short-term deposits are considered integral part of the Company’s cash management,

m.  Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents includes fixed deposits with banks with original maturities of twelve months or less,

n. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. An asset is impaired when the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. An
impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had
previously been recognised.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down 1o its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used.

0. Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results
are regularly reviewed by the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) to make decisions for which discrete financial information is available.

Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various
performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments. The Board of Directors who are responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments have been identified as the CODM,

p-  Earnings per share

The Company reporis basic and diluted eamings per equity share. Basic earnings per equity share have been computed by dividing net profit/loss attributable to the
equity share holders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share have been computed by
dividing the net profit attributable to the equity share holders afier giving impact of dilutive potential equity shares for the year by the weighted average number of equity
shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the peniod/year, except where the results are anti-dilutive.

. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activitics of the Company are segregated.
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(ANl amownts are in INR Lakhs wiless otherwise stened)
2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

r. Use of estimates and judg

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the gement make estimates and ptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reporied amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future years. In particular, information
about areas of significant estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements are included below:

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment is included in the following notes:

(i) Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortisation is based on management estimates of the future useful lives of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, Estimates may

change due to technological developments, competition, changes in market conditions and other factors and may result in changes in the estimated useful life and in the
depreciation and amontisation charges,

(i} Recognition and ement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary
escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The
period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations. Due to complexities involved in the valuation
and its long term nature, defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions.

{iii) Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments are required to be fair valued as at the balance sheet date as provided in Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 113. Being a critical estimate, Jjudgement is
exercised to determine the carrying values. The fair value of financial instruments that are unlisted and not traded in an active market is determined at fair values
assessed based on recent transactions entered into with third parties, based on valuation done by external appraisers etc., as applicable.

(iv) Expected credit losses on financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on its financial assets measured at amortized cost. At each reporting date, the Company assesses

whether financial assets carried a1 amortized cost are credit- impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash Nows of the financial asset have occurred.

v} Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Delerred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences could be utilized, Further details are disclosed in Note 20,

{vi) Provision and contingencies

The recogmition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and
circumstances known at the reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore, vary from the amount included in other provisions.

(vii) Share based payments

Estimating fair value for share based payment requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, The estimate also requires determination of the most
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the option , volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions
¢ e value for share based payments transactions are discussed in Note 27 "Employee stock option plan” (ESOP)

and models used for estimati
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(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs uniess otherwise stated)
2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
{viii} Leases

In determining whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains,
a lease date if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific assel or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is
not explicitly specified in the arrangement.

s. Recent Pronouneements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued
from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:

Ind AS | — Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information,
together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expeeted to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements, The
Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements,

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations, Th dments narrowed the scope
of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company is evaluating the impact, if any, in its financial statements.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates, The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been
replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are "monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”, Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way thal involves
measurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.
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Notes to the Standalone financial statesents for the year ended 3 March 2023

(AIT commensennty e i INR Lokl mdless atherwise sioted)

4 Leases

A contract 1s. of contains, 3 lease if the contract convevs the right 1o contrel the use of an identified assct for a peried of time in exchange for consideration

Compenny oy o fevver
and |

The Company’s kease asset elasses primarily consist of leases for
whether a contract comers the nght 1o control the use of an identified asser. th
the cconenme benefits from usc of the asset through the period of the lease and

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“"ROU™) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease

term of twelve months of less (short-term leases) and low value feases

the Company has the right te dircet the use of the asset

Tt . The Company assesses whether a contract comtaing a lease, at meeption of a contract. To assess
c Company assesses whether: (3) the contract involves the use of an identified assct (i) the Company has substantially all of

arrangements in which 1t s a essee. except for leases with a

For these short-term and low value leases. the Company recognizes the lease pavments as an operating expense on a straight-ling basis over the term of the lease, The company has not recognised any short

Curtain lease arrangements inchude the aption 1o extend or terminate the bease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and Jease liabilities includes these options when it is

reasonably certam that they

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost. which comprises the initial amount of the leasc liability adjusted for any prepaid lease plus amy initial dircet costs. They are subsequently measured at

cost less accumulated depreciation

Right-of- d from the

assets are dep

date on a steanght-line basis over the kease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrewing rate of the company. Lease

d with a ponding ad

liabilities arnc

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments of T339 (March 31, 2022; Nil) have been classifs

a) Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting period by class

to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment on whether it will excreise an exiension or a fermination option

ed as cash flow gencrated from financmg activity

Particulars

Leaschold
Property

Balanee as on 15t Apnil 2022
Additions
Deletions

3.330

{647}

Dupreciation
Balance as on 315t March 2023

2,712

Previous Year

Particulars

Leaschold

Balance as on Ist Apnl 2021
Additions

Deletions

Depreciation

Property

n e L
Balance as on 31st March 2022

Previous Year

of lease and the

b} Set out below are the carrying

during the period:

Particulars

As al 3
March 2023

Asat
31 March 2022

At the commencement of the vear
Additions

FReduction m liability

Accretion of mterest

Paviments

3196
194
(539)

At the end of the vear

2,851

Current
MNon-Current

h) Maturity analysis of lease linbilities

IR
1834

Maturity analysis - Contractual undiscounted cash Nows

Asat 3
March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Luss than one vear

O o five vears

Maore than five vears

Total undiscounted lease Babilities a1 31 March 2023

Lease babihies meluded in the Balance shect at 31 March 2023

€} Amounts recognised in profit or loss

1.275
1985
3.260
2185

Particulars

Asat 3
March 2023

Asan
31 March 2022

Interest on bease habilities

Amounts recognised in the sta

(L2

Particulars

As

Toal cash eutflow, for leases

31 March 2022
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5

&

-

Non- Current Investmenty

Anat
41 March 2023

Non Current

Investment in Equity Shares of subsidiarics a1 cost:

Mextbillion Technology Private Limited

[6:6.23 461 (31 March 2022: 63.74.323) Equity shares of Rs. 10/ cach]

Neobillion Fintech Private Limited

199860157 {31 March 2023; 99.86.056) Equity shares of Re. 1/- cach]

Groww Serv Private Limited (Formerly known as Billionbrains Capital Private Limited)
[42.38.729 (31 March 2022: 22.49.999) Equity shares of Rs, 10/- each]

Billionblocks Finserv Private Limited

(2000999 (31 March 2022: 20.09,999) Equity shares of Re, 1/- each]

Groww Pav Service Private Linited

[6O03.999 (31 March 2022, 60L03.999) Equity shares of Rs, 10V each]

Groww AA Private Limited

[23.tHLIMG (31 March 2022; Nil) Equity shares of Rs. 10/~ cach)

Groww Insuranes Private Liiled

[12.50.000 (31 March 2022: Nil) Equity shares of Rs, 10- cach]

Finments Tech Private Limited {formerly known as Finvantage Investment Adviser Private Limited)
|2, 30000 {31 March 2022 Nil) Equity sharcs of Rs. 10/~ coch]

Investment in Equity Shares ut fair value through Comprehensive Income:
Fourdegreewater Capital Private Limited

11 (31 March 2022; Nil) Equity share of Re. 10/~ cach)

Digiotech Solutions Frivate Limited

[1.834 (31 March 2022: Nil) Equity shares of Re. 1/- each]

Investment in Preference Shares at fair value through Comprehensive Income:
Fourdereewater Capital Private Limited

1627 (31 March 2022: Nil) Compulsorny convertible preference shares of Rs, 20/ cach]
Digiotech Solutions Private Limited

[ 13,933 (31 March 2022: Nil) Compulsory convertible preference shares of Re. 1/ coch]
Bigital Technologics Private Limited

120.293 {31 March 2022: Nil} Compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs, 104 cach]

Investment in Non Concrtible Debentures (Quoted) ot amotised cost- More than 12 months FEmaining maturity

56,830
LR
823
2MH)
302
250
125

26

1004

R03
9500

T

22 500

Asat

31 March 2022

51733

NI

25

2

3002

Total Investments

100,801

A1.180

Current Investment

Asat
31 Murch 2023

Measured at fair value through profit or loss

Asal
A1 March 2022

——

Imvestment in Mutual funds (Quoted)y 4800 16,776
Investment in Commercial Papers {Quoted)- Less than 12 moaths renaining matunity 4084 a
Measured it wmortised cost - quoted
Imvestment in Commercial Papers (Quoted)- Less than 12 months remaining maturity 31 806 7204
Investment in Noa Convertible Debentures (Quoted)- Less than 12 months remaining maturiry 13000 .
Tuotal Investments Th.630 23,950
Apgregate amount of unguoted inyvestment T %
Avgrepate amount of quoted investment Th.630 23980
Trale receivables
Asat Asat

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Curremt -
Trade receivables
Unseeured. Considered good 329 14,080
Unseeured. Considered doubilial % M
Luss allowance
Unsecurcd. Considercd doubtful (28} (34)
Net Trude reccivables 29.32% 14,080
Traile Receivables Aocing

Dutstanding as
Particulars Lass than 12 veurs Tatal
6 muonths

1) Undisputed Tradde recen ables - considered good 28042 - IH42
(i) Undispured Trade Recen ables - which have sigmlicant increase in eredit risk - &
i} Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired
i) Dsputed Trade Recen ables-considered gond - + g
(o} Disputed Trade Recenables — whieh have signilicant inerease in erodit rish
v b Dhspuied Trade Recenables - credin unpasred - &
Less: Loss allow ance [28)
Add Unbilicd revenue 413
Tustal 29,329




arage Ventures Pre
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(A I ametts are in INK Lakls snlexs otherse sfated)

T iV il
Outstanding as st 31 Mareh 2022 fur Tollowing perinils from due date of transaction
Particulurs Lesy than & manths - 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 ye Total
6 months 1 vear
(1) Undisputed Trade reccivables - considered good R R 3 3 Y490
(it} Undisputed Trade Recenvables — which have significant increase in eredit nisk < " . .
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — eredit impaired
(118} Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good B
(iii) Disputed Trade Reccivables — which have significant increase in credit risk
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - 2 "
Less: Loss allowance (34)
Add: Unbilled revenue 4624
Total 14,081
A _Cash and cosh couivilents
Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balances with banks — e
- N currenl accounts G4 2305
Tatal 64 2,305
8B Bank balunces other than cash and cash cquivalents
Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Bank Deposils - Less than 12 months original matunity 43,392 10,506
Depasits with NBFC's - Less than 12 months original maturity 10.0ue -
Total 53,592 10506
9 Other financial sssets
Asat As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Non-current
(Unsecured, considered good)

Rental and security deposits 343 124
Deposits with NBFC's - having remaining maturity of more than |2 months 10,000 -
Bank deposits - having remaining maturity of mere than 12 months - 135.630
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 534 -
Tutal 11.077 135874
As at As

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current — e
(Unsecured, considered gomd)
Bank depesits - having remaining maturite of less than 12 months 2918 -
Receivable from related partics {refer note 26) 425 1338
Interest accrued on investinents 3.3 1,389
Rental and security deposits - [3
Advance 1o emplovees 23 :
Total 25,666 3060
Total other financial assets 36,743 139,034

10 _Other assets
As ot Asat

31 Murch 2023 31 March 2022
Current e
(Unseenred, eonsidered good)
Balance with stanuory autheritics - 4349
Prepaid expenses 772 an
Advanees 1o supplicrs anl 348
Others % - 3
(Unsecured, considered doubeful)
Advances 1o supplicrs 2l 36
Less: Loss allowance (20 (36
Total 1.133 2500
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e}

(i)

Share eapital
As at As at
31 E‘I:Jth 2023 31 :\la_rEh 2022
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount

Authorised share capital
Equity Shares of INR 10/- (31 March 2022: INR 1/-) 75,000,000 7.500 10.000.000 100

75,000,000 7,500 10,000,000 100
Tssued, subscribed und paid-up share capital
Equity shares of par value of INR 10/ (31 March 2022 INR 1/-) 68,100,095 6,810 1,116,395 11

68,100,095 6,810 1,116,395 11
Reconciliation of shares Jing at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Number Amounnt Number Amount

Equity shares®
At the commencement of the year 111,640 11 0992 243 10
Add - Issued duning the year = - 124,152 |
Add’ Bonus shares granted during the year 67,988 455 6,799 - =
At the end of the year 68,100,095 6,810 1,116,395 11

* As on 27 March 2023 pursuant to Section 61 of Companies Act, 2013, the Company has consalidated 10 equity shares of INR | each into 1 equity share of INR 10 each.

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity share, having a par value of INR 10/ (31 March 2022: INR 1/-) per share. Every member holding equity shares therein shall have voting rights
in proporhion to their share of the pasd up equity share capital. The holder of the equity shares shall be entitled to dividend as and when declared by the Company in proportion to the
number of shares held In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to share in the residual assets of the Company The distribution will be in

Particulars of Shares held by holdin ries/ associates:

ultimate holding com

Name of the shareholder

31 March 2023

Asal Asat
31 March 2022

Equity shares with voting rights
Groww Ing, USA, the Holding Company

Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares

68,100,034 1,116,394

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

b % holdi N : % holdi
T Number of shares % holding umber of shares Y holding
held held
Groww Ine, USA, the Holding Company 68,100,034 99.9990%, 1,116,394 9999900

Particulars of Shaveholding

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Name of the shareholder

No. of Shares Yo of total shares

No. of Shares

% of total shares

since incorporation as follows:

Groww Inc, USA. the Holding Company 68,100,034 99 99099%, 1,116,394 99 995934
Harsh Jain 6l 0.0001% ! 0.0001%
The Company has 1ssued shares without payment being received in cash, bonus shares and shares bought back for the periad of § years 1 fing the Bal Sheet date or

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Bonus Shares 67,988,455 - - = =
Other equity
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Retained carminus (i) 4235 (33.456)
Securnties premium (it} 273,163 281,962
Total other equity 2179398 246,506
Ret: 1 esirnings
As ol As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance (35.456) {11.333)
Add Profit{Loss) duning the vear 39638 (24,090)
Add Remeasurement sans/losses) on defined emplovee benefit plans (net of tax) i3 (13}
Closing balanee 4.235 [35,456)
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Tor the year ended 31 March 2023

(i) Securities preminm

As al As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance 281,962 04,502
Add Premium received on issue of equity shares - 187 460
Less Utilised on issue of bonus shares {6,799) -
_Closing balance 275,163 281,962
Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Retained earnings:
The cumulative gain or loss arising from the op which is 1 by the Company is J and ac lated under the heading "Retained E ", At the end of the year,

| from the

the profit (loss) afier tax is ir

(ii} Securities premium:

of profit and loss to retained earnings

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares, The reserve can be utilised enly for limited purpose in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act.

13 Trade payables

As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current 3
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 28) - I
Total o ding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
- Payable to related party 2276 8,727
- Other trade payable 5,697 3,610
Total trade payables 7,973 12,338
Trade Payables Ageing
31 March 2023
Particulars nding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 vears
(1) MSME - - - - -
(i1) Others 448 5 - - 453
(i) Disputed Dues- MSME - ] . - -
(1v) Disputed Dues- Others - - - - -
(v) Unblled 7.520
Total 7,973
31 March 2022
Particulars Outstanding for following perivds from due date of payment Total
Less than | year 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 vears
(i) MSME 1 - B - 1
(11} Others 2,301 | 8 1 2,311
(1) Disputed Dues- MSME . - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues- Others % - - - -
(v) Unbilled 10,026
Total 12,338
14 Provisions
Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Nan-carremt
Pravision for gratuity 387 202
Total 387 202
Current
Provision for gratuity 41 10
Total 41 10

15 Other liabilities

Current

Asat As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Statutory dues pavable 3,869 1,394
Advances from customer 176 1
ilities 6,045 1,395

Tatal other current li;
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16

0

21

Revenue from operations

i For the year ended For the vear ended
Akl 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Plaiform charges 2643 11479
Support services 3208 1380
Sofiware development fees 4669 345

_lg_l_al revenue frgm operations 90,610 13,204
Revenue from contracts with customers disagaresated on the basis ol yeographic region is as below

For the year ended For the year ended
Partllane 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Domestic M), 562 13,197
Export 48 7
Total Revenue from operations 20,610 13,204

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Services transferred a1 a point in ime 90,610
Total Revenue from operations M,610 -
Other income

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

{i) Interest Income on term deposits (.0 4420
ii} Interest on unwinding of commercial paper 1972 204
(iii} Interest income on non conventible debentures 1,105 E
Met gain on fair value changes on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss
on investments
(i) Realised gain on sale of mutual fund 281 487
(ii) Unrealised gain on mutual fund ] 248
Interest income security deposit 22
Interest on income 1ax refund 41 -
Reversal of provision for loss allowances 13 .
Others 70 2
Total 10,408 5,361
Emplayee benefit expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries. allowanees and bonus 22850 9,127
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 216 K0
Share based payment 1,683 6,613
Srall welfare expenses 729 4]
Gratuity 249 121
Total 15,717 16,181
Depreciation and amertisation expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation on property. plant and equipment 527 7Y
Amonrtisation en intangible assets 3 -
Depreciation on leases 647 -
Total 1,177 179
Finance costs

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended

31 March 2022

Interest on lease liabililies 1M
Total 194 -
Other expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Marketing and b sp 2N 2371 20,217
Software. server and technology expenses 7397 5447
Professional and consulting charges 1.183 AT
Rent and mamienance charses 283 143
Rates and 1axes 139 g
Travelling and convevance charees 173 1]
Pavments 1o Auditors

- Statuion Audii 13 #

= Tax Audit 2 2
Provision for loss allovances - 1]
Communicalion expenses 34 0
Foreiyn exchange losses (nel) A1 12
Miscellaneous espenses 4 Ll
Total 32001 26,195

cC \\_
\
o~ e
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22 Income Taxes

A Amount rec 1in Standalone § of profit or loss
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current tax 2,162 -
Total enrrent tax expense 2,162 -
Deferred tax
In respect of current year - -
Total deferred tax expense d =
Income tax expense reported in the st of Profit and Loss 2,162 -
B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Bttt For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit{Loss) before income tax expense 41,320 (24,000)
Tax at Indian tax rate of 25.168% (31 March 2022 - 25, 168%) 10,525 -
Effect of
Tax on unrecogmsed tax losses (8.218) -
Tax on expense not tax deductible 1] -
ltems for which deferred tax is not recogmised* (1e2) -
Total tax expense 2,161 -
* Note: The Company has not 1 d deferred tax asset lering the impact of Section 79 of The Income Tax Act, 1961 upon pl of the amal for which a
Scheme for amalgamation has been filed with NCLT (Refer Note 33 far details)
C. Current tax assel (net)
Particulars Asat Azt
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current 1ax asset (net) 1.093 923
D. Tax losses carried forward
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Gross Amount Expiry Date Gross Amount Expiry Date

Tax losses {business losses)
Tax |osses (unabsorbed depreciation)

3,358 Vanous
- Indefinite Period

68T Vanous
365 Indefinite Period

E. Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Gross Amount Unrecognised tax Gross Amount Unrecognised tax
elfect effect
Tax losses (business losses) 3,358 345 36487 9,183
Tax losses (unabsorbed depreciation) - 5635 142
Total unrecognised deferred tax assets 3,358 845 37,053 9,325




Billionbrains Garage Ver
Notes to the Standalone financial

wres Private Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2023

(AN cmsorenes e in INR Lakhs inless otherwise siated)

23 Employee benefit obligations

Defined Contribution Plan

Contribution are made 10 Provident fund in India for employees, The contnbutions are made to
towards defined contribution plan is INR 216 for the year ended March 31, 2023 (INR 20 for the

Defined benefit plans

The Company provides for gratuity for emplayees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Empl
{ inati last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days sal;

is the

pratuity payable on

year ended March 31, 2022)

who are in

registered Provident fund administered by the Government, The expenses recounised duning the period

service for a penod of § years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of
ary multiplied for the number of years of service,

As at 31 Marech 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Particulars
Curvent Non-current Current Non-current
Gratuity 41 387 10 202
Total employee benefit abligations 41 387 10 202
{i} Reconciliation of and closing bal of Defined Benefit Obli
i Asat As al

Pesfiigtion March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at beginning of year 212 R0
Current service cost 234 110
Interest cost 15 10
Actuanial loss / (zain) recognised in other comprehensive income

a) changes in demographic assumption (81 -
b} changes in financial assumptions %) (il
¢} experience adjustments 57 19
Benefits paid - =
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at year end 429 212

{ii} Expenses recognised during the year

For the vearended  For the vear ended

Bessriiion March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Current service cost 134 1o
Interest cost 15 10
Expenses recognised in Profit and loss 249 120

{iv) Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Deseription

For the vear ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Actuarial {osses)Gains on obligation for the year 33 {13)
Net (Expense)/Income for the year recognised in OCI 3 (13)

benefit obligations (c

13 Emplo

(v} Actaarial assumptions

Description

Gratuity as on March 31
023 022

Mortality Table (LIC)

India Assured Lives  India Assured Lives
Mortality 2012-14 Mortality 2012-14

Discount rate (p.a) 7.25% 7.02%
Antrition Rate 25.00% 18.00%
Rate of escalation in salary {p.a) 11.00% 11 00%%
Reti age 60 Years 60 Years
{vi) Sensitivity Analysis - Gratuity

AT For the yearended  For the year ended
Barticulsis March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate : +1% (23) (15)
Discount rate : -1% 22 16
Salary escalation rate : #1% 19 13
Salary escalation rate : -1% (20} 3
Attrition rate; +19%% i N
Antrinon rate: - 1% 9 7

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while halding all other assumptions constant. Whe
assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obhgation calculated with the projected umit credin method

defined benefit liability recoznised in the balance sheet

The Mortality. does not have a sivnificant impact on the Liatulity . hence are not considered a sionificant aciuarial assumphion for the
v analysis did not change compared to the prior vear

The methods and types of

used in preparing the

The expected future contnbution and estimated future benefit payments from the fund are as follows

n caleulating the sensitivity

Particulars Gratuity
Expected comnbution to the fund during the year ending 31 March 2023 Linfunded
Estimated benefit payments from the fund - Time period (in vears)

Within | vear 40
2- A3 vears 173
6 =10 vears 2]
Above 1 vears 131

of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the

purpose of Sensitivity analysis
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24 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
A Accounting classifications and fair values
Fair values are categonised into different levels in a far value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:
Level | - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asscls or labilities
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly (i e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (uncbservable inputs)

The following table shaws the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy

As at 31 March 2023

Carrying value Fair value
Particulars e R )\r:::::sv.-d Tm:::l:jlnr::mg Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
In (excluding subsidiary)® 9,784 12,004 89,366 111,154 9,784 - 12,004 21,788
Trade receivables - - 29,329 29329 - - 5 &
Cash and cash equivalents - - 64 G4 - - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenis - - 33,592 53,592 - = - o
Other financial assets - 36,743 36,743 - - - %
9,784 12,004 209,004 230,882 9,784 - 12,004 21,788
Financial liabilities
Trade pavables - - 7,973 7,973 - - - e
Lease liabilities - - 2,851 2,851 - = - -
- - 10,824 10,824 - - » =
As at 31 March 2022
Carrying value Fair value
Particulars IR, YO '\‘::::;“d ! “':::‘::zmg Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investments {excluding subsidiary)* 16.776 - 7,204 23,980 16,776 - - 16,776
Trade receivables - - 14,080 14,080 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 2,305 2,305 - - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenis - - 10,506 10,506 - - - -
Other fingncial asscts - - 139,034 139,034 - - - -
16,776 - 173,129 189,905 16,776 - - 16,776
Financial liabilitics
Trade payables - 12,338 12,338 - - - -
- 12,338 12,338 - - = +

g 7l

Iy in €515 1 al cost

The company has not separately disclosed the fair values for financial assets and liabilities ather than investments, because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of the fair
values.
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B Measurement of fair values
Valuation techmique used 1o determine fair values:
Specific valuation technigue 1o value financial instruments like:
1. Use of quoted market prices for financial instruments traded in active markets.
i For other financial instruments - discounted cash flow analysis.

C Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks ansing from financial instruments:
(1) Credit risk,
(1) Liguidity rask. and
{m} Market sk

i. Risk management framework

The Company’s board of di has overall responsibility for the and ight of the Company’s risk management framework The Company's risk management policies
are established to idennfy and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and Is and to itor risks and adk to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its traming and management standards and procedures, aims 1o
maintain a disciplined and e ve control envi in which all employees understand their roles and abligations

115

ii. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of fi ial loss to the Company if a ¢ or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and anses principally from the
Company's receivables from customers. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to clients. including trade receivable. The maximum

exposure 1o credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The bjective of party credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Company assesses
the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors,

The all for lif: pected credit loss on trade receivables for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 was INR 28 and INR 34 respectively. The reconciliation of allowance for
doubiiul irade recervables is as follows:
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 34 -
Changes during the year - 34
Bad Debts written off (6) -
Balance at the end of the year 28 34

Cash and cash equivalents
Credit nisk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high eredit ratings assigned by domestic credit
rating agencies
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24 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

iii, Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in ing the oblig associated with its fi that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet ns habilities when they are due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or nisking damage 1o the Company’s reputation

1 Biahil

The Company’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, and the cash flow that is generated from operations The Company has managed its liquidity and working capital
requi hrough cash d from operations and through intermittent short term borrowings. The Company has sufficient short term fund based lines, which provides healthy

hquidity and these carry highest credit quality rating from reputed credit rating agency, hence no liquidity risk is pereeived

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial habilitics at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and
exclude the impact of netting agreements.

Contraciyal cash Mlows

31 March 2023 Carrying amount 6 months or less Duein6-12  Dueinl-2year Due More than
months 2 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables 7.973 7,973 - - -
Lease liabilities 2851 454 564 1,256 578
10,824 8,427 564 1,256 578
Contractnal cash flows
31 March 2022 Carrying amount 6 months or less Duein 6-12 Duein 1-2 year Due More than
months 2 years
Non-derivative financial linbilities
Trade payables 12,338 12,338 - - =
12,338 12,338 - - %

iv, Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market nisk comprises of three types of risks:
interest rate nisk, price risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes trade receivable/payable, other financial assets and liabilities. The Company is not
exposed to any significant market risks.

Interest rute risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The interest rate risk can also impact the
provision for retiral benefits. The Company generally utilises fixed rate borrowings and therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows
will fluctuate because of change in the market interest rates. The Company 15 not exposed to significant interest rate risk as at the respective reporting dates

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreizn exchange rates. Exposures can arise on account of the
various assets and liabilities which are denominated in currencies other than Indian Rupee.

The following table shows foreign currency exp in USD on fi | instruments at the end of the reporting period:

i} Foreign Currency Exposure:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
USD usp

Non- Financial Assets

Advance to suppliers (Rs.) 2 28

Financial Liabilities

Trade Payable (Rs.) 1,837 7,068

Net Total 1,837) (7,040)

i} Foreign Currency Sensitivity:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
usn usp
1% Depreciation in INR
Impact on statement of profit and loss 18 70
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
usn UsD

1% Appreciation in INR
Impact on statement of profit and loss (18) {70)

v, Capital Management
The Company’s policy is 1o maintain a strong capital base 5o as to maintain invesior. creditor and market confidence and 1o sustain future development of the business The Company
monitars the return on capital and its objective when managing capital 1s 1o maintam an optimal structure so as 1o maximize sharcholder value
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15 Contingent

lities and commitments (1o the extent not provided for)

Particulars

As at Asar
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

a) Contingent Liabilities
b) Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining 1o be exccuted on capital account and not provided for

¢} Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

The Company did not have any lony term contracts including derivative coniracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

26 Earnings per share (EPS)

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnin r share:
5 For the year ended
Particulars —
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Eurnings

Profit/ (Loss) for the year atiributable to equity shareholders for calculation of basic and diluted EPS {In INR Lakhs) 39,691 (24,103)

Shares

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for calculation of basic EPS (In Lakhs) * 681 681

Effect of dilutive potential equity shares - -

Weighted average number of equity shaves for caleulation of diluted EPS {In Lakhs) 681 681

Basic earnings per share 58.28 (35,400

Diluted earnings per share 58.28 {35.40)
10 10

Nominal value per share *

* Nominal value per share and weighted average number of equity shares

consolidation of shares. (Refer Note 11)

27 Related party disclosures

As per Indian Accounting Standard on related party disclosures {Ind AS 24), the names of the related partics of the Company are as follows;

A Names of velated parties and velated party relationship with whom transactions have taken place

as at 31 March 2022 adjusted rewrospectively for the purpose of calculation of EPS on account of issue of banus shares and

Name Type

Groww Ine |Holding compar

Nexthillion Technology Private Limited Subsidiary company

Finments Tech Private Limited (formerly known as Finvantage Enterprises having key 1 I lin
Investment Adviser Private Limited) (subsidiary w.e f. 8 March 2023)

Nechillion Fintech Private Limited Subsidiary

Groww Serv Private Limited (Formerly known as Billionbrams Camital
Private Limied)

Subsidiary company

Billionblocks Finserv Private Limited

Subsidiary company

Groww Pay Services Private Limited

Subsidiary company

Groww Creditserv Technalogy Private Limited

Enterprises having key management personnel in commen

Lalit Keshre Key personnel
Harsh Jain Key P |
Neeraj Singh key P | {w.ef 27 March 2023)
Ishan Bansal Kev ent p | {w.ef 27 March 2023)

B The following transactions were carvied out with the related parties in the ovdinary course of business:

Nature of Transaction

Related Parey

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Groww Inc

Nextbillion Technology Private Limited

Neobillion Fintech Private Liunied

>

—

_E;O \

N7 NEA
iR

ncluding securities premium

In in equiry

Share based pavments

Support services

I 10 Uity | ol
Tech platform charges (excluding GST)

Investment in Compulsory Convertible Preference shares (CCPS)
Expenses meurred by related party on behalf of Company
Expenses meurred by Company on behalf of related party
Software development fees

Software, server and technology expenses

Remmbursement recovered

Reimbursenient paid

Support services

Rental income
1

N eguity

Remmbursement recovered

Remmbursement pad

Tech plaforin charges recerved {excluding GST)
Suppon servaces

Rental meome

Expenses meurred by Company an behalf of related pany
Expenses mcurred by related party on behalf of Company

- 187 461
1,768 6,613
(48) =

- 25,000
(80,985) (11,248)
346 1.937
(2.864) (1.574)
(4,573) -
- 3
4,045 6
(94) ey
(2.429) (1.213)
(28) o
- 5,000
189 82 30
(0) 12)
(1.657) {1}
(419) (i
2) =
{182}
0
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26 Related party disclosures {continued)

Nature of Transaction

Related Party

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Groww Credisery Technology Private Limited

Trade receivables

Groww Pay Services Private Limited I in equity i - 3.000
Suppor services (809 (32)
Software development fees (26) (345)
Rental income (5) 2)
Reimbursement paid {167) ()]
Reimbursement recovered 125 1]
Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party (138) -
Expenses incurred by related party an behalf of Company 254 #
Groww Serv Private Limited (Formerly known as Billionbrains Capital  Support services 1323) {10y
Private Limited) Professional and consulting charges 504 -
Reimbursement recovered L] 0
Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party (60) -
Expenses incurred by related party on behalf of Company 2 -
Reimbursement paid )
T in cquity i 600
Groww Creditserv Technology Private Limited Rental income (8) -
Finments Tech Private Limited (formerly known as Fi i Soft develop fees {69) -
Investment Adviser Private Limited)
Reimbursement recovered - I
Billionblocks Finserv Private Limited Professional charges 16 -
Expenses incurred by related party on behalf of Company 13
Reimbursement paid - (13)
Reimbursement recovered - 35
Platform charges (excluding GST) - 8
1 in equity i - 100
Groww AA Pvi Lid I in equity 1 230 -
Groww Insurance Broking Private Limited Investment in equity instruments 125 -
Lalnt Keshre Purchase of equity instruments of Groww Pay Services Private limited - 1
Purchase of equity instruments of Nexibillion Technology Private Limited 1,651 250
Purchase of equity instruments of Finments Tech Private Limited [ -
Directors remuneration® 1o 143
Harsh Jain Purchase of equity instruments of Groww Pay Services Private limited - 1
Purchase of equity instruments of Nextbillion Technology Private Limited 995 400
Purchase of equity instruments of Finments Tech Private Limited 7 -
Directors remuneration® 143 -
Neeray Singh Purchase of equity instruments of Mexthillion Technology Private Limited 934 328
Purchase of equity instruments of Finments Tech Private Limited i3 -
Remuneration® 169 143
Directors remuneration® i -
Ishan Bansal Purchase of equity instruments of Nextbillion Technology Private Limited 556 325
Purchase of equity instruments of Finments Tech Private Limited 1 -
Directors remuneration® 3 -
Remuneration® 144 "
*The amount dows nat nclude provision for gratuity as the same is determined for the Company as whole based on actuarial valuation
D, Outstanding balances
" As at As at
Pt Helncaany 31March 2023 31 March 2022
Groww Inc, Trade payables (1.837) (6,934)
Trade receivables 4 6
MNexthillion Technology Privare Limited Trade receivables 27339 13,591
Other financial assets 404 1,556
Trade payables {255) {1,792)
Finments Tech Private Limited (formerly known as Finvantage Onher financial assels - -
Investment Adviser Prvate Linuted)
Trade receivables 75
Neobilhon Fintech Private Linuted Trade receivables 1LET4 o
Trade payables 2
Groww Serv Private Limuied {Formerly known as Billionbrains Capital  Trade receivables - 9
Prvate Limited)
Trade payables {86)
Advance from customer (176} -
Other financial assets = -
Bilhonblocks Finserv Prvate Limted Trade receivables - 7
Other financial assets & =
Groww Pay Services Private Limined Trade receivables 35 367
Trade payables {87} -
Orther financial assets 2k b4
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28 Share Based Payments

All the Company's employees or consultants approved by the Board, are eligible for being considered for the grant of stock options under Groww Ing 2017 Stock Incentive

Plan ("GSIP 2017") administered by the Holding Company.

Stock options granted under GSIP 2017 would vest based on the terms and conditions mentioned in the respective Stock option Grant Notice. The holding company has
issued fully vested stock options and stock options with a vesting period of 12 - 48 months with a cliff of 12 months in graded manner. Vesting of options would be
subject to continued employment with a Company. The specific vesting schedule and conditions subject to which vesting would take place would be outlined in the

document given to the option grantee at the time of grant of options. The excercise price of the options granted during the year 1s USD 0.27.

For stock options issued under GSIP 2017, the weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was $20.22 (March 31, 2022: $24.57). As at March 31,

2023, the weighted average cc remaining life of options is 2.38 years,

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the employees were provided option of cash or share based payment alternative for perforance bonus. Pursuant to the same, the

Company paid performance bonus in the form of stock options amounting to Rs. 85 which is included as pant of Salaries, allowances and bonus (March 31, 2022: Nil).

Movement of share options during the financial year;

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

0 ding as at the beginning of the year 1,667,437 1,295,259
- Granted 151,617 431,909
- Transferred in 699.075

- Repurchased - (36.475)
- Forfeited (94,087) {23.256)
QOutstanding as at the end of the year 2,424,042 1,667,437
Vested as at the year end 1,999,673 1,119,072

Fair value of stock options granted

The fair value of the stock options granted is estimated at the grant date using arm’s length price of the stock options computed based on the Black-Scholes model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the stock options were granted. The inputs used 1o measure fair values of options granted on the grant date were as

frllawe:
The following table lists the inputs to the option pricing models for the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Dividend yield (% p.a.) 0% 0%

YT
Expected volatility (% p.a.) S 36%

2.28% - 4.22%

Risk-free interest rate (% p.a.)

Expected life of option (years) % 2
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29 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

30

&

32

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued on Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their
correspondence with its eustomers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated afier filing of the Memorandum, Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such
enterprises as at 31 March 2023 has been made 1n the financial statements based on informalion received and available with the company, Further, in management's view, the impact of interest, if
any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Miero, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('the Act) is not expected to be material

it As at Asat

Birifges 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
The principal amount and interest due thercon remmmng unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year.

- Principal amount =

- Interest due thereon * #
The amount of interest paid by the company along wath the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year - -
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day - -
Amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year. - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and pavable even in the succeeding years, till actually paid to the small enterprise, for the - -
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure,

Total outstanding principal dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises included in Trade Payables (Note 12) - 1
No funds have been advanced or loaned or | {either from b ! funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company 10 or in any other persons or entities,

including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the
Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not recerved any fund from any parties (funding party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified by or behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Benefici 1es”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

Key Ratios
Numerator Denominator 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 % variance
a) Current Ratio Total current assets Total current liabilities 12.44 455 173%
b} Return on Equity Ratio Profit for the year less Preference dividend Average total equity 15% -15% 30%
(if any)
¢) Trade Receivables turnover ratia Revenue from operations Average trade receivables 417 1.75 138%
d) Net capital turnover ratio, Revenue from operations Average working capital (i.e. Total §2% 26% 6%
current assets less Total current
liabilities)
¢) Net profit ratio, Profit for the year Revenue from operations 44% -182% 226%
f) Return on Capital employed, Prafit before 1ax and finance costs Capital employed = Net worth + 14% -10% 23%
Lease liabilities + Deferred tax
liabilities

Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year) in key financial ratios, along with detailed explanations thereof:

Ratio Reason for Variance

a) Current Ratio Increase 15 on account of increase in investments, bank deposits and other current Liabilities

b) Return on Equity ratio Increase s on account of increase in profit when compared to loss in the previous year

¢} Trade Receivables turnover ratio Inereuse 1s on account of increase in revenue from operations and relative increase in average trade receivables,
d) Net capital umover ratio Improved on account increase in tech platform and support charges and increase in current assets

e} Net profit ratio, Improved on account increase in tech platform and support charges and thereby increase in profit

f) Return on Capital employed, Improved on account inerease in profit

Segment Reporting
The Company's operations pred ly relate to software designing, maintenance, development, support services and its related activities and is the only eperating segment of the Company The
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) reviews the operations of the C pany as one operating . Henee no separate segment information has been furnished herewith

The Company operates in one seographic seement namely "within India" and hence no separate inf ion for gec hi wise disclosure s required.
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33 Subsequent events

for the year ended 31 March 2023
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naependent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at
31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries
as were audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group as at 31 March 2023, of its consolidated loss and other comprehensive loss, consolidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us
along with the consideration of reports of the other auditor(s) referred to in paragraph (a) of the “Other
Matters” section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements,

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company's directors' report, but
does not include the financial statements and auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the

Reqistered Office:
B 5 R & Co. (a parinership firm with Registralion Mo, BA§1223) converted into B 5 R & Co. LLP {a 14th Floor, Central B Wing and North © Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco
Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Registration No. AAB-8181) with effect from October 14, 2013 Center, Weslern Express Highway, Goregaon {East), Mumbai - 400063

Page 1 of 8



BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done/audit reports
of other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
Page 2 of 8
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estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of such entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in paragraph (a) of the section
titled “Other Matters” in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

Other Matters

a. The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 were audited
by the predecessor auditor who had expressed an unmodified opinion on 30 September 2022,

b. We did not audit the financial statements of 7 subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total
assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs.10,720 lakhs as at 31 March 2023, total revenues
(before consolidation adjustments) of Rs.4,462 lakhs and net cash outflows (before consolidation
adjustments) amounting to Rs.(302) lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order") issued by the Central
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Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries, as were audited by other
auditors, as noted in the “Other Matters” paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements com ply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31 March 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the
directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, as noted in the “Other Matters”
paragraph:

a.

There were no pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 which would impact the consolidated
financial position of the Group.

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2023.

There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India during
the year ended 31 March 2023.

d (i) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated

in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and
the other auditors of such subsidiary companies that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

(i) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated
in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and
the other auditors of such subsidiary companies that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received
by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies shall directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has
come to our or other auditors notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India have neither declared
nor paid any dividend during the year.

f.  As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiary companies only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under
Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports
of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies incorporated in India which were not audited
by us, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company, its
subsidiary companies incorporated in India since none of these companies is a public company. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which
are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.:T&l1248W;’W-1 0022
|

()
Rohit Alexander
Partner
Place: Bangalore Membership No.: 222515
Date: 31 May 2023 ICAI UDIN:23222515BGZACP3096
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 reports of the companies incorporated in India and included in the consolidated
financial statements.

ForB SR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

i)
Rohit Alexander
Partner
Place: Bangalore Membership No.: 222515
Date: 31 May 2023 ICAI UDIN:23222515BGZACP3096
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures
Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended
31 March 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Holding Company and such company incorporated in India under the Act which is its subsidiary
company, as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such company incorporated in India which is its subsidiary
company, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by such companies
considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note").

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the respective company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference fo financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-1Q0022

7
Rohit Alexander
Partner
Place: Bangalore Membership No.: 222515
Date: 31 May 2023 ICAI UDIN:23222515BGZACP3096
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March 2023

(Al amonnts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As at

e Ploges 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property. plant and equipment IA 1.390 943
Intangible assets iB 47 -
Capital work-in-progress w 9 -
Right-ot-use-assets 29 2945 w
Goodwill 27.684 27.684
Financial assets

L Investments 4 34.504 -

i Other financial assets 8 11.442 2.72.015
Deferred tax assets (Net) 21 87 250
Total non-current assets 78,108 3,00,892
Current assets
Finaneial assets

L Investments 3 87.304 27972

ii. Trade receivables 6 3626 1.427

iii. Cash and cash equivalents TA 17.129 11.253

iv. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 7B 1.41.688 45.204

v.  Other financial assets 8 1.29.602 3.942
Current tax assets (net) 21 1.577 1.125

Other current assets 9 4.871 7.910
“Total current assets 3,85,797 98.833
“Total assets 4,63,905 3,99,725
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 10 6.810 11
Oither equity A 3.06.563 2.70.602
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 3,13,375 2,70,613
Non-controlling interests 1B - 1.958
“Total equity 3,13.375 272,51
LIABILITIES
™on-current liabilities
Provisions 13 439 247
Lease Liabilities 29 2.010 -
“Total non-current liabilities 2,449 47
Current liabilities
Financial i ties
i. Lease Liabilities 29 1.089 +
ii. Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 12 8 |
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 12 1.38.754 1.24.543
enterprises
Provisions 13 913 13
Other current liabilities 14 7317 2,348
Total current liabilities 1,48,081 1,26,907
Total liabilities 1,50,530 1,27,154
Total equity and liabilities 4.63,905 3,99,725
2

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

g

ohit Alexander
Partner
Membership No. : 222515

Place: Bengalury
Date: May 31, 2023

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 31, 2023

for and on behalf of the Board of Divectors
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
CIN: U72900KA2018FTC'109343 .

ol

Lalit Keshre
Director
DIN 02483558

arsh Jain
Director
DIN (05321547

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 31. 2023

2

RoshanDave
Company Secrctary
Membership No. A26472

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 31. 2023



Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

Al amonnis are in INR Lakhs wnless otherwise stated)

For the vear ended

Particulars Notes

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue fromm operations 15 1.27,780 35,002
Other income 16 15.001 7.627
Total income 1,42,781 42,719
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 17 28,075 22989
Finance cosls 8 207 3
Depreciation and amortisation expense 19 1,229 M
Other expenses 20 63.180 43,070
Total expenses 93,291 66,366
Profit/{Loss) before income tax 49,490 (23.647)
Tax expense
Current tax

(i) for current year 21 4,459 288
(ii) relating to earlier years 21 - 1
Deferred tax 21 154 {35)
Total tax expense 4,613 254
Profit/{Loss) for the year 44,877 (23,901}
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gains (losses) on defined employee benefit plans 71 (13)
Income tax relating o above (1} -
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Forcign currency translation reserve ) i
Other comprehensive income / {loss), net of tax 63 (13)
Total comprehensive income for the year 44,940 (23,914)
Profit/{loss) for the vear attributable to:
Owners of the Company 44872 (23.940)
Non-controlling interests 5 45
Total 44,877 (23,901)
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 03 (13
Non-controlling interests = =
Total 63 (13}
Earnings per equity share in INR (Face Value @ INR 10/~ per share) 25
Basic earming per share 65.89 {35.17)
Diluted earning per share 65.89 (35.17)
Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for B R & Co. LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ed Accountangs Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

CIN: UT2000KAZ018FTC 109343

lodl N4

Lalit Keshre Harsi Jain

Director Director Cormipany Secretary
Membership No. 1 222513 DIN (124833558 DIN 05321547 A26472
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai

Date: May 31, 2023 Date: May 31, 2023 Date: May 31, 2023 Date: May 28, 2023



Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs unless othervise stated)

A, Share capital

Particulars Amount
As at [ April 2021 10
Issue of equity shares 1
As at 31 March 2022 11
[ssue of equity shares -
Issue of bonus shares 6,799
As at 31 March 2023 6,810
B. Other equity
Particulars Reserves Other Total
and comprehensive
surplus Income
Sccurities Retained earnings Foreign
Premium currency
translation
reserve
As at 1 April 2021 94,502 13,437 - 1,07,939
Loss during the year - (23.946) - (23,946)
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined employee - (13 - (13
benefit plans
Change in non controlling interest - (837) - (837)
Premium received on issue of equity shares 1.87.460 - = 1.87.460
As at 31 March, 2022 2,81,962 (11,359) - 2,70,602
Profit during the year - 44872 - 44,872
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined employee - i1 - 6l
benetit plans
Change in non controlling interest - 2,173) - {2,173)
Foreign currency translation reserve 2 2
Securities premium utilised on issue of bonus shares (6,799) = 2 (6.799)
As at 31 March 2023 2,75,163 31,400 2 3,06,565
Significant accounting policies (Refer Note 2)
The accompanying notes lorm an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for BSR & Co. LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Charfered Accountants Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Firnf Registratiog Number: 101248W/W-100022 CIN: U72900KA2018FTC 109343
FNJ 3
r .. 0
ohit Alexander Lalit Keshre Mtill Roshaimr-Bave
Partner Dircetor Director Company Secretary
Membership No. : 222515 DIN 02483558 DIN 05321547 Membership No. A26472
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai

Date: May 31,2023

Date: May 31,2023 Date: May 31,2023 Date: May 31,2023



Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit (Loss) before tax

Adjustments:

Interest income

Interest on unwinding of commercial paper
[nterest income on non convertible debentures
Interest on unwinding of security deposits
Net gain on fair value changes

Depreciation

Provision for loss allowance

Reversal of provision for loss allowances
Finance cost

Operating cash flows before working capital changes

Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables
{Increase) decrease in other bank balances
{Inerease)/decrease in other financial assets
(Inerease) decrease in other current assets
Increase {decrease} in trade payables
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in provisions

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid, net of refund

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property. plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress

Sale of property. plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Investment in mutual fund

Proceeds from sale of mutual fund

Investment in shares

Invesiment in commercial paper

Redemption of commercial paper

Purchase of treasury bill

[nvestment in non convertible debentures
Redemption of non convertible debentures
Payment to non controlling interest holders to acquire stake
Bank deposit placed

Proceeds from bank deposits

Interest received

Net cash from/(used) in investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares
Repayment for lease liabilities

Interest on lease liabilities

Interest on overdraft facilities

Net cash used in financing activities (C)

Changes on account of conversion of balances from functional
currency to presentation currency (D)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C+D)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents acquired on business combination
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

49,490 (23,647)
(I.111) (6.545)
(1.972) (204)
(1.105) 2
(23) (n
(625) (877)
1229 304
1031 284
(79) -
207 3
37,042 (30,683)
(2.371) (564)
25,553 (90.993)
(35.263) (700}
3120 (4.460)
14.221 91,524
4,968 2127
298 151
47.568 (33.598)
(4.911) (1.276)
42,657 (34,874)
(1.015) (840)
] =
(50) .
(2.05.292) (1.27.800)
211703 1.16.418
(12.004) .
(69.009) (7.000)
19.159 -
(473) :
(40.500) :
3.000 :
(4.163) (1.300)
(2.91.599) (2.67.359)
3.42.566 132,227
11.413 4475
(36,263) (1,51,179)
: 1.87.461
(345) (9
(194) -
(7) (3)
(546) 187,449
2 =
5,850 1,396
11.253 9.857
2 -
17,129 11,253




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Consolidated Cash flow statement for the yvear ended 31 March 2023

(Al amornts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stared)

Paiticutis For the vear ended For the vear ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Balances with banks in current accounts 17.129 11.253
Balances per statement of cash flows 17,129 11.253

Notes:

The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the “Indirect method™ as set out on the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-T) Statement

of cash flows.

Significant accounting policies (Refer Note 2)

The accompanying notes are integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for BF R & Co. LLP

ohit Alexander
*artner
Membership No, : 222515

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 31, 2023

JSor and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
CIN: UT2900KAZ018FTC109343

e

Lalit Keshre Harsh Jain Roshan Dave

Director Director Company Secretary

DIN (12483358 DIN 03321547 Memnbership Mo, A26472
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai

Date: May 31,2023 Date: May 31,2023 Date: May 31, 2023



Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the C lidated financial st ts for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al comeonnnts ave in INR Lakhs wnless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate Information

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited (*the Company’) is the "Holding Company”. and its subsidiaries and associate together referred as "Group”. The Company
was incorporated as a private limited company on 9th January 2018 under the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013, Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited is a
subsidiary of M's. Groww Inc. Delaware. United States of America,

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited is primarily engaged in carrying out the business of software designing. maintenance, testing and benchmarking. designing,
developing computer software and solutions. carry on the business of providing. building. organizing of software tools. marketing and innovatization of licensed software.
consultancy services. The company operates the web & app based technology platform. “Groww™, Subsidiaries are primarily engaged in business of stock broking services
(including mutual fund) and depository services. online technological facilitation ‘business correspondence or partner service to Banks. NBFC's and Financial institutions.

2. Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation and presentation
The financial statements of the Group comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notitied under Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013
(the “Act’} read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules. 20135 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013,

The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Changes in Equity. the Statement of Profit and Loss and disclosures are presented in the format preseribed under Division 11 of
Schedule 111 of the companies Act. as amended from time to time that are reguired to comply with Ind AS, The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per the
requirentents of Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on accrual basis. except for certain financial assets and liabilities, defined benefit plan
liabilities and share-based payments being measured at fair value.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. These financial statements are the Group's first Ind AS financial statements, The Group’s financial statements
are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) (Rs.). whic Iso its functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs. except when otherwise indicated.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 are heing authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 24 May 2023,

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented. unless otherwise stated,

Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements has comprised financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to. or has rights to. variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to
direct the relevant activities of the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control
commences until the date on which control ceases.

The Group combines the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assets. liabilities, equity, income and
expenses, Intercompany transactions. balances and unrealised gains on transactions within the Group are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of changes in
equily and balance sheet respectively. Statement of profit and loss including Other comprehensive income (OC1) is attributable to the equity holders of the holding
Company and to the non controlling interest basis the respective ownership interest and such balance is attributed even if this results in controlling interest is having a
deficit balance.




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the C lidated financial stat ts for the year ended 31 March 2023

(AN amonnts arve in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

2. Sig

cant accounting policies (Continued)

Associates
Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting
. after initially being recognised at cost.

Under the equity method of accounting. the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafier o recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss. and the Group’s share of other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduetion in the carrying amount of the investment,

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity. including any other unsecured long-term receivables. the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated 1o the extent of the Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Aceounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where
necessary 1o ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to refleet their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment 10 non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised within equity,

When the Group cepses to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of a loss of control or significant influence. any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial ecarrying-amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate or financial asset. In addition. any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities, This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss. I the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained. only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate,

Details of subsidaries
Following subsidiary companies and associate entities have been considered in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements

Name of the entity Relationship Country of % of voting power
Tncorporation 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Nextbillion Technology Private Limitad Subsidiary India 99.9999% 96.2094%
Groww IFSC Private Limited Step Dowa Subsidiary India 100% -
Meobillion Fintech Private Limited Subsidiary [udia 100
Groww Serv Private Limited Subsidiary India 100% 100%
(Formerly known as Billionbrains Capital Private Limited)
Billionblocks Finserv Private Limited Subsidiary ludia 100% 100%
Groww Pay Service Private Limited Subsidiary India 100% 100%
Groww AA Private Limited Subsidiary India 100% -
Groww Insurance Broking Private Limited Subsidiary India 100% .
Finments Tech Private Limited (Formerly know as Subsidiary India 100% -

Finvantage [nvestment Adviser Private Limited)




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounts are in INR Lakls nnless otherwise stated)
2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

a. Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and ement

Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. if any. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s

carrying amount.

liems of property. plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost comprises acquisition cost. borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met. and directly
altributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the i ded use. Subsequent expenditure relating to property. plant and equipment is capitalized only
when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with these will flow with the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Capital work-in-progress are property. plant and equipment which are not yet ready for their intended use. Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding

at each reporting date are shown as other non-financial assets. Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in progress until construction and installation is completed and
assets are ready for its intended use.

Items of Property. plant and equipment that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net book value or net realisable value
and are shown separately in the financial statements. if any.
if.  Depreciation

Depreciation provided on property. plant and equipment is caleulated on a straight line basis (changed from written down value basis followed in earlier financial years)
using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives specified in Schedule 11 of the Act.

The estimated useful lives of items of property. plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset L seful life
Computers, Laptops and Peripherals 3 years
Furnitures & Fixtures 10 years
Office Equipments 5 years
Metworking equipments b years

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use. In respect of assets sold. depreciation is provided up to the date of
disposal, The residual values. estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property. plant and equipment are reviewed at the end of cach financial year and
changes it any. are accounted for on a prospective basis.

Improvements to leasehold premises are amortised over the lease term or useful lives of the assets. whichever is lower,

ifi.  De-recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property. plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition. disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised net. within *Other Income™ or “Other Expenses™. as the case maybe. in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the year of derecognition. disposal or retirement,

b. Intangible assets

. Recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably. and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will
flow to the Group. Intangible assets are capitalised at cost of acquisition including cost attributable to readying the asset for use. Intangible assets acquired separately are

measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. The useful life of these intangible
assets is estimated at 3-10 years with zero residual value.

il.  Amortisation

Amortisation is provided using the straight-line method on the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives and is included in the statement of profit and loss.
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(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

2, Significant accounting policies (Continued)

c. Revenue from Contracts with customers

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS
I15. Revenue from contracts with customers. outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes

current revenue recognition guidance found within Ind ASs of accounting on acerual basis. Revenue from contracts with customer recognised when control of the goods
or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,

The Group recognises revenue {rom contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind AS 115:

Step 1 Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between fwo or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out
the eriteria for every contract that must be met,

Step 20 Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer 1o transter a good or service to the customer.,
Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
promised goods or services to a customer. excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance obligation. the Group allocates the
transaction price o each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying
each performance obligation,

Step 3: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group recognises revenue from the following sources:

(a) Income from tech platform services is recognised upon completion of services. in accordance with the terms of contract.

(b) Income from services rendered as a broker is recogmised upon rendering of the services on a trade date basis. in accordance with the terms of contract, There is only one
performance obligation of execution of the trade and settlement of the transaction which is satistied at a point in time.

() Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate method.

(d) Advances ved from customers in respect of contracts are treated as liabilities and adjusted against billing as per terms of the contr
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(Al amounts are in INR Lakiis unless otherwise stated)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

d. Financial instruments

i. Date of Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group's balance sheet when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

ii. Initial Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities. with the exception of loans. debt securities, deposits and borrowings are initially recognised on the trade date. i.¢, the date that the Group
becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrument. Recognised financial instruments are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly

attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial Liabilities, as
appropriate. on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
i, Classification and Subsequent Measurement

A, Financial assers

Based on the business model. the contractual characteristics of the financial assets and specific elections where appropriate. the Group classifies and measures financial

assets in the following categories :

a) Amortised cost: A financial assets is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at Fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL):
+ the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows ("Asset held to colleet contractual cash flows'): and
+ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest ('SPPI') on the principal amount
outstanding.
After initial measurement and based on the assessment of the business model as asset held to collect contractual cash flows and SPPL such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate (*EIR") method. Interest income and impairment expenses are recognised in profit or loss. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income using the EIR method. Any gain and loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss,

The EIR method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest over the relevant period. The EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated Future cash flows (including all lees paid or received that form an integral part of the EIR. transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the instrument, or, where appropriate. a shorter period. to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the contractual
cash Hlows and to sell the assets. (‘Contractual cash flows of assets collected through hold and sell model) and contractual cash flows that are SPPL are subsequently
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount of such financial assets are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (*OCI'). except interest | dividend income
which is recognised in profit and loss. Amounts recorded in OC1 are subsequently transferred 1o the statement of profit and loss in case of debt instruments however, in
case of equity instruments it will be directly transferred to reserves. Equity instruments at FVOCT are not subject to an impairment assessment,

¢) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial assets. which do not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as EVOCI or either designated.
are measured at FVTPL. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss. The Group records investments in equily instruments and mutual funds at
FVTPL. —
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(Al amonnts arve in INR Lakhs wunless otherwise stated)
2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
B. Financial liabilities

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial hiabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contraciual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument,

(a) Equity Instrument - An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group is recognised at the proceeds received. net of directly attributable transaction costs.

(b} Financial Liabilities Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, The carrying amounts are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently determined
based on the EIR method. Interest expense is recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of (inancial labilities is also recognised in profit or loss.
The Group does not have any financial liability which are measured at FVTPL.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. In order to show how fair values have been derived. financial
instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques. as summarised below:

Level [ : Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group has access to at the
sasurement date. The Group considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards o the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or
liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 : Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant. are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire
period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 : Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

Based on the Group's business model for ing the in us. the Group has classified its investments and securities for trade at FVTPL. Investment in subsidiaries
is carried at deemed cost (previous GAAP carrying amount) as per Ind AS 27.

Financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. For trade and other payables. the carrying amount approximates the fair value due
to short maturity of these instruments.

iv. Reclassification:
Financia ts are not reclassitied subsequent to their initial recognition. apart from the exceptional circumstance
a business line or in the period the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets. Finaneial liabilities are not reclassified.

s in which the Group acquires. disposes of, or terminates

v Derecognition:
(A) A financial asset (or. where applicable. a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:
* The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. or
+ The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. or the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the assel.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for the amount it may have to pay.

On derecognition of a financial asset. the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised)
and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (i) any cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in OCL s recognised in profit or loss (except for equity instruments measured at FVOCT),

(B) A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged. cancelled or expires, Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms. or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. In this case. a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair
value. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

vi. Offsetting:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when. and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the amounts and it intends either 1o settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Ry
I
2N

NS,

T
ZuBR
\r\g\\



Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
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(Al amonnts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
vii. Impairment of financial assets:

A. Trade receivabley
The Group applies the Ind AS 109 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance (ECL) for all wrade receivables,
The application of simplified approach does not require the Group 1o track changes in credit risk, Rather. it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. right from irs initial recognition.
l'o measure the expeeted credit losses. trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rates are
based on average of historical loss rate adjusted to reflect current and available forward looking information affecting the ability of the customers 1o settle the receivables,

B. Other Financial Assers
A financial asset is written oft when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows

c. Employee Benefits

i Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits include salaries and short-term bonus. A liability is recognised if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount
as a result of past service provided by the employee. and the obligation can be estimated reliably. These costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss at the undiscounted amount expected to be paid over the period of services rendered by the employees to the Group.

i, Gramity
Every emplayee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line with The Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972, The same
is payable at the time of separation from the Group or retirement. whichever is earlier. The benefit vest after five years of continuous service.

The Group’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benelit scheme is caleulated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that the employees have eamed in return for their service in the current and prior period. Such benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value
of any plan assets. if any. is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit credit Method which recognises each period
of services as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation,
The obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The discounted rates used for determining the present value are based on the market yields on

Government Securities as at the balance sheet date,

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the perfod in which they oceur. direetly in
other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

iii. Provident fund

The contribution (o provident fund is considered as defined contribution plan. The Group has no obligation. other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Group recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense. when an employee renders the related service.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

iv. Compensated absence

The eligible employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on
annual basis or on termination of employment whichever is earlier, The Group records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee
renders the services that increase the entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of unutilised leave balance in the statement of protit and loss as and when they
are incurred,

v, Share based payment arrangements

The cost of equity settled share-based payment transactions with emplayees is measured by reference to the fair value of the options using option pricing model at the date
on which the options are granted which takes into account market conditions and non-vesting conditions.

The fair value is expensed over the period until the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding liability 1o pay Ultimate Holding Company based on a cost recharge
arrangement.

f. Borrowing costs

Expenses related to borrowing cost are accounted using effective interest rate. Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to
foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of
the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. The difference between the discounted amount
mobilised and redemption value of commercial papers is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the life of the instrument using the EIR.

o, Foreign Exchange Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on sentlement of revenue
transactions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Monetary assets and liabilities contracted in foreign currencies are restated at the rate of exchange ruling at
the Balance Sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange
rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary asseis and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a fareign currency are translated at the exchange
rate al the date of the transaction.

h. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease. or contains a lease. is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right te use the asset. The Group assesses whether
a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is. or contains. a lease if the contract conveys the right to contral the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assets. the Group assess whether (i} the contract
involves the use of an identified assets: (ii) the Group has substantially all the cconomic benefits from use of the assets through the period of the lease and (iii) the Group
has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease. the Group recognises a right-of-use assets (ROU) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease amrangements in which it is a
lessee. except for leases with a term of 12 month or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Group recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term, ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options
when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised,

The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability. any lease payments made at or before the inception date of the
lease. less any lease incentives received. Subsequently. the right-of-use assets is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. if
any. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use assets.

For lease liabilities at inception. the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date, The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. if that rate is readily determined. If that rate is not readily determined the lease payments are discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease |
flows,

lity has been included in borrowing and ROU asset has been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash
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2, Significant accounting policies (Continued)
i.  Provisions, contingent liabilitics and contingent assets

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash Mows (representing the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation ar the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specilic to the liability. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted 10 effect current management estimates,

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes forming part of financial statements. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the
financial statements. Contingent liabilities are recognised when there is possible obligation arising from past events. the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
aceurence or non-occurence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.

i-  Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. 1 is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
equity or in OC1,

(i) Current Tax

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income for the year in accordance with the Income Tax Act. 1961, Current tax comprises

the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax
items are recognised in correlation fo the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate,

Current tax assets and current tax liabilitics are offset only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recogmised amounts. and it intends to realise the asset
and settle the lability on a net basis or simultancously.

fii} Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method. on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the

finaneial statements.

Deferred tax assets arising mainly on account of carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws are recognised only if there is reasonable certainty of its
realisation. supported by convincing evidence.

Deferred tax assets on account of other temporary differences are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and 1ax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. Changes in deferred
tax assets / liabilities on account of changes in enacted tax rates are given effect to in the standalone statement of profit and loss in the period of the change. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off assets against liabilitics representing current tax and where the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws,
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2. Significant accounting policics (Continued)

k. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents includes cash on hand and balance with bank in current accounts. demand deposits with banks. other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, For the
purpose of the statement of cash flows. cash and cash equivalents cash and short-term deposits are considered integral part of the Group's cash management.

I.  Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. An asset is impaired when the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. An impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exeeed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had previously
been recognised.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for
an individual asset. unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down 1o its recoverable amount, In assessing value in use. the estimated
future cash fMows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining net selling price. recent market transactions are taken into account. if available. If no such transactions ean be identified. an appropriate
valuation model is used.

m. Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses. whose operating results are
regularly reviewed by the Group's Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM®™) to make decisions for which discrete financial information is available.

Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108. the CODM is reviewing the operations of the Group as basis operating segment. The Board of Directors
who are responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments have been identified as the CODM.

n. Business Combination

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method as at the date of acquisition. which is the date on which control is transferred to the Company.
ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities 1 in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, When the Company acquires
a business. it assess the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation. In accordance with contractual terms. economic
circumstances. and pertinent conditions as at acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the interest in the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
and attributable to the owners of the Company is recorded as goodwill. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred. which is
measured at the acquisition date fair value and the amount of a non-controlling interest in the acquire. Transaction costs incurred in connection with a business acquisition
are expensed as and when incurred, I the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred. then the gain is recognised in other
comprehensive income (OC1) and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date,
Subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent consideration are recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control shall be accounted for using the pooling of interest method.,

It a business combination is achieved in stages. any previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or

loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCL as appropriate,
0. Earnings per share

Basic carings per equity share have been computed by dividing net profitloss attributable to the equity share holders for the year by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted carings per equity share have been computed by dividing the net profit attributable 10 the equity share holders after
giving impact of dilutive potential equity shares for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the
period year. except where the results are anti-dilutive,

p.  Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method. whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or aceruals of
past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating. investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
q. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management make estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future years. In particular. information about areas of
significant estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements are included below:

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment is included in the follow ing notes:

(1) Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortisation is based on management estimates of the future useful lives of the property. plant and equipment and intangible assets. Estimates nmay
change due to technological developments. competition. changes in market conditions and other factors and may result in changes in the estimated useful life and in the

depreciation and amortisation charges.
(i) Recognition and measurement of defined benefir obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate. trends in salary
escalation. actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The
period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations. Due to complexities involved in the valuation
and its long term nature. defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumpltions.

fiif) Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments are required to be fair valued as at the balance sheet date as provided in Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 113. Being a critical estimate. judgement is exercised
to determine the carrying values. The fair value of financial instruments that are unlisted and not traded in an active market is determined at fair values assessed based on
recent transactions entered into with third parties. based on valuation done by external appraisers eie.. as applicable.

fiv} Expected credit losses on financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on its linancial assets measured at amortized cost. At each reporting date. the Group assesses whether
financial assets carried at amortized cost are credit- impaired. A financial asset is “credit impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated luture cash flows of the financial asset have oceurred.

(v) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases, Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences could be wtilized. Further details are disclosed in Note 20, :

v} Provision and contingencies

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources. and on past experience and circumstances
known at the reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may theretore. vary from the amount included in other provisions.

(vii) Share baxed payments

Estimating fair value for share based payment requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model. The estimate also requires determination of the most
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the option . volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them, The assumptions and
models used for estimating fair value for share based payments transactions are discussed in Note 27 "Employee stock option plan” (ESOP).




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

(AN ameunts arve in INR Lakhs wless oterwise stated)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(viii}) Leases

In determining whether an arrangement is. or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is. or contains. a

lease date if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. even if that right is not
ed in the arrangement.

explicitly spe
r. Recent Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued
from time to time, On March 31. 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1. 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their signiticant accounting policies.
with other information. is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. The Group does not

Accounting policy information. together
expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of
the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions that. on initial recognition. give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Group is evaluating the impact. if any. in its financial statements.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies. Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates, The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been
replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition. accounting estimates are "monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves
measurement uncertainty. The Group does not expect this amendment to have any significant impaet in its financial statements.
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the € lidated fi il for the year ended 31 March 2023

LA amonns are in (NR Lakhs wless odiernise stated)

4 Non- Current lnvestments

Digiotech Solutions Private Limited 1,004 i
[31 March 2023 - 1.534 (2] March 2022 Nil} Equity shares of Re. | - cach]
Tuvestment in Preference Shares at fair value through Comprehensive Income:
Fourdegreewater Capital Private Limited 303
[31 Mareh 2023 - 627 {31 March 2022: Nil) Compulsory canvertible preference shares of Re, 20 - cach]
Digtotech Solutions Private Limited 9,500 s
131 March 2023 - | 3,935 (31 March 2022 Nil) Compulsory conventible preference shares of Re. | - each]
Bigital Technologies Private Limited FO0 -
[31 March 2023 - 20,295 (31 March 2022: Nil) Compulsory convertible preference shares of Re. 10 - cach]
Measured at amortised cost - quoted
Investment in Non Convertible Debentures - More than 12 months remaining maturity 22500 -
Taotal Investments 3504 -
5 Current lnvestment
Asat Asal

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Measured at fair value through profit or loss - quoted
Investment in Mutual funds 14,982 20,768
Investment in Commercial Papers - Less than |2 months remaining maturity A.084 -
Measured at amortised cost - quoted
Investment in Commercial Papers - Less than |2 months remaining maturity 31866 7.204
Investment in Non Convertible Debentures 13,000 -
Investment in Treasury Bills 473 5
Total Investments 87.304 27972
Aguregate amount of unguoted myvestment . &
Avpregate amount of quoted investment 73404 7amn

6 Trade receivahles
Asat Asat

31 March 2013 31 March 2022
Current
Trude receivahley
Unsecured, Considered goed 1,626 1. 427
Unsecured. Considered doubtful 351 178
Loy Allowanee
Unsecured. Considered pood 1331) {178}
Net Trade receivables 3.626 1.427

As at
31 March 2023

Asat
3 March 2022

Investment in Equity Shares at fair value through Comprehensive Income:
Fourdegreewater Capital Private Limited
[ 31 March 2023 - | (31 March 2022: Nil) Equity shares of Re. 10 - each)]

No trade or other receivables are due from directors or others officers of the Company either severally or joinily with any other person nor any trade or other receivabile are due from
firns or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner. a director or a member: except as disclosed in note 27

Trade Receivables Ageing
| Particulars

Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 for following periods from date of transaction "

Less than & month F 6 months - | year | -2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 years Topl
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 2446 | 46 | 57 | 1] | 5 2,584
Less: Loss allowance (35t)
Add: Unbilled revenue 1.393
Total 1626

Pcticulais Outstanding as at 31 March 2022 for following periods from date of transaction Total

& months - | vear 1-2 vears han 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 316 | 58 | 34 14 | B 627
Less: Loss allowance (178)
Add: Unbilled revenue 978
Total 1427




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the C lidated financial stat for the vear ended 31 March 2023

(AN amouns are in INR Lakhs wiless othernise stated)

TA Cash and cash equivalents

As at Asat
31 March 2023 3 March 2022

Balances with banks

- in current accounts 17139
Total Cash and cash equivalents 17.129
7B Bank balances other than cash and eash cquivalents
As at Asat
3 March 2023
Bank Deposits - Less than 12 months original maturity® 1.30.888
Deposits with banks held against cuarantee 200
Deposits with NBFC's - Less than 12 months original maturits 10000 -
Total 1.41 .ﬁ_ 45.204
8 Other financial assets
As al Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non-current
(Casecured, comidered good)
Rental and secority deposits st 266
Security deposit with exchanges depositories 2126 177
Bank deposits - having remaining maturity of more than 12 months*® 34 27573
Deposits with NBFC's - having remaining maturity of more than 12 months 1OLH0 -
Interest acerued on fixed deposits 534
Total 11442 2,712,015
As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current
(Unsecured, convidered good)
Bank deposits - having remaining maturity of less than |2 months® 1. 24.009 -
Advance to emplovees 31 14
Receivable from Payment apgregators Aid 1.265
Interest acerued on fived deposits 5008 2,652
Rental and secunty deposits . i)
Total 1.29.602 3942
Total other financial assets LAL044 275,957

* Fixed deposits with Banks have been len marked with clearing corporations amounted to INR 166,623 (March 31, 2022 INR 1.26.982). Further. fixed deposns with Banks have
been placed as collateral sceurity against bank overdraft facility amounted to INR 17681 (March 31, 2022 INR 12.944),

9 Other assets

Asal Asat

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current B
(Umvecnred, considered good)
Balance with statutory authorities 2968 4303
Prepaid expenses 915 kol
Advances to suppliers 038 3.203
Others = 3
(Uyecured, considered dowbifil)
Advances to suppliers 4 16
Less: Loss Allowance on advance to suppliers (24} {106}

Total 4.471 7.910




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the C I il for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amoronts are in INR Lakhs unless othernise stated)

10 Share capital

. Asat As at
Farticubies 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number Amount Number Amount
Anthorised share capital
Equity Shares of INR 10 - (31 March 2022: INR | -) cach with voting rishis 7.50.00,000 1500 1,00.00,000 100
7.50,00,000 7500 1,00,00,000 100
Dsued, subseribed and paid-np share capital
Equity shares of par value of INR 10 - (2] March 2022: INR 1 -) each with voting ri 6.81.00.005 6.510 11.16.395 11
Total 6.81L.00.095 6.810 11.16.395 11
Number of shares have been dischsed in absolute terms
{a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
. Asat 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars .
Number Number Amount
Equity shares*
At the commencement of the year L0 1 992,243 1
Add : Issued during the year . - 124,152 |
Add: Bonus shares wranted during the vear 6. 79,838 455 .749%
At the end of the s ear 6.81.00.095 6,810 11,16,395 11

© As an 27 March 2023 pursuant to Section 61 of Companies Act, 2013, the Company has consolidated 10 equity shares of INR 1 each inta | equity share of INR 10 each,

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity share, having a par value of INR 10- (3] March 2022 INR | - per share. Every member holding equity shares therein shall have voting Aghts in proportion w their
share of the paid up equity share capital. The halder of the shares shall be entithed to dividend as and when declared by the Company in proportion 1 the number of shares held. In the event of liquidation
of the Company. the holders of the equity shaves will be entitled to share in the residual assets of the Company, The distribution will be in proportion Lo the number of equity shares held

(e) Particulars of Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates:

Name of the sharcholder

As at
31 March 2023

As at

31 March 2022

Equity shares with voting rights
Groww Ine, USA

{d) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares

6,51.,00,034

11,16,394

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Number of shares ! i h et of s % i
Name of the shareholiler Number of shares Ya holding  Number of shares % holding
held Teld
Groww Inc. LSA 6.31.00.034 9.9999%, 1116394 09.990592,
6.81.00,034 99.9990%, 11,16.394 99.9999%;,
{¢) Particulars of of Sharcholding
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Name of the shareholder No. of Shares % of total shares No. of Shares % of total shares

Groww Ine, USA. the Holding Company 6,81.00,024 KL T 16,394 99,9999

Harsh Jain 6l 0.000 1% I 0.0001%
N The Company has issued shares without payment being received in cash. bonus shares and shares bought back for the period of 3 years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date or since incorporation as

fllows:

] 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

|Bnnus Shares 6.79,88.453 - - -

11A Other equity

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Retained camings {11 31400 (1,359
Securities premium (i} 275,163 131962
Foreign currency translation reserve (i) X -
Total other equity 3.06.565 2,70,602
(i) Retained earnings
As at As at
[}
Farticlary 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening bakance Al 13437
Add: Profit {loss) during the year 44,572 {23,046}
Add {Less) Change in non controlling interest {2173y {337)
Add: Remeasurement gains {losses) on defined employee benefit plans (net of tax) [} [1R)]
Closing bulance 31,400 (11,359
(i) Securities premium
As at As at
riiculars Ly

Al 31 March 2023 3 March 2022
Opening balance 281962 94,502
Add: Premium received on issue of equity shares - 1,87 460
Less: Utilised for bonus issue (6. 799} i
Closing balance 275,163 181,962
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(Al amornis are tn INR Lakhs wniess otherwise stated)

(iii)_Foreiun currency translation reserve

(ih Ret

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

Asat
31 March 2022

Opening balance

Add: Chanye during the vear

3

Closing balance

Rl LS
Nature and purpose of reserves

ed earnings:

The cumulative gain or loss arising fom the operations which is retained by the Group is recognised and accumulied under the heading "Retained Eamings”. At the end of the sear, the profit {loss) after tax is

transferred from the statement of profit and loss to retained camings.

{il) Securities premium:
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares, The reserve can be utilsed only For limited purpose in accordanee with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2012,

(it} Foreign currency translation reserve
Foreign currency translation reserve represents changes on aceount of conyersion of functional currency to presentation CUFTENCy,

118 Non-controlling interests (NCI)

2

=

. Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance 1,958 1377
Add: Profit during the 5 45
Addd Less: Changs {1903} (465)
Closing balance - 1.958
During the year the shares of NCTwere acquired by the Company accordingly NCas on March 31, 2023 is Nil.

Trade payables
Asat Asat

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current
Pavable w vendors
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) 3 ]
Total owstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Pmvable to related pary 1911 11,698
- Pavable to other than related parny 1.36.843 112845
Total trade payables 1.38.762 1,24.544
Trade Payables Ageing
Particutars |__Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 for follow ing periods from date of transaction Total
Less than | vear il More than 3 vears
{i} MSME i B . 8
{ii) Others 123 k53 3 - 127,157
Add: Unbilled 11,597
Total 1.38.762
Particulars Outstanding as at 31 March 2022 for following periods from date of transaction Total
Less than | year 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 vears
i) MSME I - # 2 I
(1) Others 107,349 546 o 1 108,642
Add: Unbilled 15,901
Total 1,.24.544
Provisions
Asal Asat
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non-current
Provision for eratite 439 7
Total 439 47
: As at As at
Particntry 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current
Provision for ratuity 1 g
Provision for compensated absences L] &
Provision for expected credit luss 264 -
Total 913 15
Total Provisions 1,352 262
Other liabilities
. Asat As at
Paciuuling 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current
Sratutory dues payvable 7317 2330
Advances from customer - |
Income received in advance ) 17
Tutal other current liabilities 737 2,348
i
Qe
b

o

T
2
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

15 Revenue from operations

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(a) Sale of services
Fees and commission income 1,22.611 32,584
Tech platform and support charges 43 236
(b) Other operating revenue
Interest income on fixed deposits with banks carmarked with stock exchange 5,121 2278
Total Revenue from operations 1,127,780 35,092

Disaggregation of Revenue from operations

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Geographical markets
Domestic 1,27.732 35,085
Export 48 7
1,27,780 35,092
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point in time 1.27.780 35092
1,27,780 35,092

16 Other income

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost:
(i) Fixed deposits with banks from treasury funds HL.111 6,545
(i) Interest on unwinding of commercial paper 1.972 204
{1i1) Interest income on non convertible debentures 1,105 -
(iv} Interest on unwinding of seeurity deposits 23 I
Net gain on fair value changes on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss on
investments
(i} Realised gain on sale of mutual fund 331 496
{1i) Unrealised gain on mutual fund 74 381
Reversal of provision for loss allowance 79 -
Interest on income tax refund 51 -
Rental income on sub-lease 8 -
Miscellancous income 27 -
15,001 7,627

Employee benefit expenses

Faor the year ended
31 March 2023

For the vear ended
31 March 2022

Salaries. allowances and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Share based payments

Staff welfare expenses

Gratuity

Finance costs

25442 11.095
303 161
1,352 11.256
881 330
297 147
28,675 22,989

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Interest on lease liabilities
Interest on overdraft facility

200 -
7 3
207 3




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

(M amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

19 Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended  For the vear ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 558 294
Amortisation on intangible assets 3 =
Depreciation on right of usc 668 10
1,229 304

20 Other expenses

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Marketing and business promotion expenses 24,383 25,452
Software, server and technology expenses 13,505 8.364
Transaction and other related charges 21.905 7.638
Professional and consulting charges 613 903
Rent and maintenanee 328 227
Travelling and conveyance expenses 180 I8
(‘'ommunication expenses 73 26
Rates and taxes 228 174
Payments to auditors
- Statutory audit 44 16
- Tax audit 4 4
Provision for loss allowance 564 140
Director's sitting fee S 10
Foreign exchange losses (net) 818 20
Corporate Social Responsibility (refer note 28) 1 -
Miscellaneous expenses 23 T
63,180 43,070




Billionhrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial stutements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Al annearinny wee e INE Lokl el asherwine stused)
21 Income Taxes

Al Amount recognised in profit or loss statement

For the vear ended  For the vear ended

A1 March 2023 3 March 2022

Current tax

() for current ¥ ear 4,454 28

(o} relating to earlier Vears = |
Totul current tax expense 4459 289
Deferved tax
In respect of gurment period 164 [RAT)
Total deferred tax expense 164 (35)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of Profit and Loss 4,623 254

B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Particulars For the vear ended  For the vear ended

31 March 2023 31 Muarch 2022
Profit | Loss) betore share of profit in equity aceomnted v estees and tax FTRTT) 1236471
Tan at Indian tax rate of 25.168% (31 March 2021 : 25.168%) 12,456 (5951}
Ettect of
Tax on unrecogmised tav losses (8218 2
Losses for which deferred tax 15 not recogmised 529 6,147
Fax on expense not tax deductible k0] 1
Itewmes for which deferred tax s not recogmsed™ (162) %
Others (i 5
Total mx expense 4,633 254

* Note; The Company has not recogmised deferred tax asset considering the impact of Section 79 of The Income Tax Act, 1961 upen completion of the amalgamation. for which a Scheme for amalgarmation has
been filed with NCLT. (Refer Note 37 for details)

C. Current iy

Particulars Asul Asal
3 March 2023 3 March 2022
L377 1125

Current fax asset (neth

D. Deferred Tax

Particulars Asal Asat

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax linbilities
| srealised gain on secu
Total deferred tax lia
Deferred tax assets
Property plant & equipiment
Disallowance of expenses
On carry forward of losses
Total deferred tax assets
Net deferred tax Asset

e carried at e value troogh profitor loss oher compechensive income b

1|
T3

] bl o

Deferred tax asscts/(linbilitics):

Movement of deferred tax assets / linbilitics presented in the balance sheet

Pursunnt to business R, i
ccopnised In Recopnised in OCI Asat

combination profit or loss 31 AMarel 2023

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Deferred tax lability on:
Unrealised gain on secuniies carmied at

far value through profit or loss | other comprehensive income 110 - 14 - 151
Gross deferred tax liabilities (231 = 14 - {9}
Deferred tax assets on;
Property plant & Equpment - - L] - 1]
Lease - 5 T . 7
Disallowance of Expenses 7z - & ¥ HE
On carry forward of losses 21 - 12401} - =
Gross deferred tax assets 273 = (188) 1m0 95
Net deferred tax asscls 250 2 {174) 10 87
_ : " Asat Pursuant to business  Recognised in x : Asan

Fi bieamanended 51 Slaoeliaas 01 Agril 2021 combination prnlll':; ortoss  ReSoRisedin OC ) w202
Deferred tax liability on:
Unrealised gain on securities carmed at
fanr value through profit or boss * other compreliensive incomse . F: 124 . 23
Gross deferred tax liabilities . L 23 - (23
Deferred tax asscts on:
Property plant & Equipment 3 . il
[hsallowance of Expenses 1 - fil) . T2
On carry forward of losses 2 - - - 2l
Grogs deferred tax assets 2i5 - 58 - 73
Net deferred tax asscts 215 - 35 - 250
E. Tax losses carried forward
Particulars Asat 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Gross Amount Expiry Date Gross Amount Expiry Date
Tax losses {business losses) S Vanous NS Various
Tax losses (unabsorbed depreciation) - Indefinite Period 565 Indefimte Penod
F. Unrecognised deferred tax asscis
Particulars Asat 31 March 2023 Asat 31 March 2022

Gross Amount Unrecognised  Gross Amount Unrecognised tax

tax effect effect

Tax losses (business losses) Sim4 L2800 Hals [T

Tax losses (unabsorbed depreciation) r 565 142
Total unrecognised deferred tux assets 5,084 1280 37.581 9.458




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

A amonnis arve in INR Lakhs unless othervise siared)

22

(i}

i)

Employee benefit obligations

Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution are made 1o Provident fund in India for employees. The contributions are made to registered Provident fund administered by the Govermment. The expenses recognised
duriny the period towards defined contribution plan is INR 302 for the vear ended March 31, 2023 (INR 157 for the year ended March 31, 2022,

Defined benefit plans

The Group provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Aet, 1972,
gratuity, The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn bas
number of years of senvice.

imployees who are in continuous service for a period of 3 vears are cligible for
salary per month computed proportionately for 15 dayvs salary multiplied for the

Pardeiisis As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Current Non-current Current Non-current

Compensated absences ] - 0 &
Gratuily 43 439 g M7
Total empl benefit obligati 49 439 15 247
Defined benfit plans
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation

L As at Asat
B 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Defined Benetit Obligation (DBO) at beginning of vear 256 96
Curren! service cost 262 136
Past service cost 18 -
Interest cost 17 H
Actuarial loss / (gain) recognised in other comprehensive income
a) changes in demographic assumption 186) -
b} changes in financial assumptions 19) (8)
€} experience adjustments 18 |
Benefits paid - -
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at year end 482 256

Expenses recognised during the vear

For the year ended  For the vear ended

Description 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost K} 136
Past service cost 18 -
Interest cost 17 11
Expenses recognised in Profit and loss 297 147
Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCT)

Description For the year ended  For the yvear ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Acturial Gains/ (Losses) on obligation for the period 71 {13
Net Income / (Expense) for the period recognised in OCI 71 [ER]]
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22

Employee benefit obligations (

{iv) Acturial assumptions

{vi)

d)

Description

Gratuity as on March 31

2023

2022

Mortality Table (LIC}

Discount rate (p.a)

Antrition Rate

Rate of escalation in salary (p.a)
Retirement age

India Assured Lives
Mortality 2012-14
250
23000
11.00%

60 Years

India Assured Lives
Mortality 2012-14
T.02% - T.03%
18.00%
T100%,

o) Years

Sensitivity Analysis - Gratuity

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Discount rate : +1%
Discount rate : -1%

Salary escalation rate : +1%
Salary escalation rate ;- %
Adtrition rate: + 1%
Attrition rate; - 1%

(27}
24
e |
24
(13}

9

(7
20
17

(13)
(8)
10

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant, In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the
assumptions may be correlated. When caleulating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation 1o significant actuarial assumptions the same method {present value of the defined
benefit abligation caleulated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when caleulating the defined benefit liability recognised in the
balance sheet.

The Mortality. does not have a siwnificant impact on the Liability . hence are not considered a signilicant actuarial assumption for the purpose of Sensitivity analysis
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

The expected future contribution and estimated future benefit payments from the fund are as follows

Particulars CGratuity
Expected contribution te the fund during the year ending March 31, 2023 Unfunded
Estimated benetit payments from the fund - Time period {in years)
Within | year 1-40
2- 5 years 16-273
& - 10 years 13-221
Above 10 vear 10-131
S
7
F \
y & -\
Iﬂ' en \
i | }]
\ P
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23 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

A Accounting classifications and fair values
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technigues as follows:
Level | - Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability. either direetly (Le. as prices) or indireetly {i.e, derived from prices)
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or Liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs}

The following table shows the camrying amounts and fair values of fi ial assets and fi ial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy

As at 31 March 2023

Carrying value Fair value
Particulars FVIRE [FVOS) ,\n;:::sl.d [m:::‘:::mg Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investments 19966 12,004 89,838 1,21.808 19,966 - 12,004 AL9T0
Trade receivables - - 3,620 3.626 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 17.129 17,129 - - N .
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - - 1.41.688 1.41.688 - - - -
Other financial assets - - 141,044 1.41.044 - - - -
19966 12,004 393,324 4,125,294 19,966 - 12,004 31.970
Financial liabilities
Frade payables - - 1.38,762 1,38,762 - = - -
Other financial liabilities - - 3.009 3.099 - - - .
- - 141,861 1.41.861 - - - -
As at 31 March 2022
Carrying value Fair value
Particulars Eeibs: Facl An::::;“d . ul::"::;:: ing Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investments 20.768 - T.204 27972 20,768 . - 20,768
Trade receivables - B 1.427 1,427 & - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 11,253 11.253 - - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents - - 45.204 45.204 - - - -
Other financial assets - - 2.75.957 2.75.957 - - - -
20,768 - 341,045 3.61.813 20.768 - - 20,768
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - - 1,24.544 1.24.544 - - - -
Other financial liabilities - - - - - - - -
- - 1.24.544 1.24,544 - - - -

For investments measured at FVOCT (Level 3). the Group has considered the fair value as on 31 March, 2023 based on the recent market transaction price,

The Group has not separately disclosed the fair values for financial assets and liabilities other than investments, because their camrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of
the fair values,




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the C lidated financial for the year ended 31 March 2023

LA amonnts are in INR Lakhs nnless otherwise stased)

B Measurement of fair values
Valuation technigue used to determine fair values:

Specific valuation rechnique 1o value financial mstruments like;
i. Use of quoted market prices for financial instruments raded in active markets,
ii. For other financial instruments - discounted cash flow analy

C Financial risk nuanagement
The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
(1) Credit risk:
(i) Liguichity risk: and
(i) Market risk

i. Risk management framework

The Company”s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework, The Company's risk management
policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence 1o limits, Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities, The Company, through its training and management
standards and procedures. aims 1o maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

i, Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. and arises principally from the
Group's receivables from customers. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions. as well as credit exposure to clients. including trade receivable, The
maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrving value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets.
The Group assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial position. past experience and other factors.

Ihe allowance for lifetime expected credit loss on trade receivables for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 was INR 351 and INRITS respectively, The reconciliation of
allowance for doubtful trade receivables is as follows:

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
3 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 178 -
Changes during the year 2N} 178
Bad Debts written off (27) -
Balance at the end of the year 351 178

One of the subsidiary in the Group has given Performance guarantee for fow loans given by the financials partners. For this loans in accordance with Ind AS 37, the company has
provided loss allowance against the guarantee given to these Financial pantners,

The subsidiary has in accordance with Ind AS 109 classified the loans as Stage I Stage 11 and Stage 111 Based on the Expected Credit loss (ECL) the company has created overall
provision of 6.4% on total outstanding of the loans for which they have given performance guarantee.

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Balance ut the beginning of the year

Changes during the year 804 -
Bad Debts written off - 5
Balance at the end of the year 864 -

Cash and cash equivalents
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Group generally invests in deposits
credit rating agencies,

h banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by domestic
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23 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk manazement i continued )

ifi. Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group's
approach 1o managing liquidity is to ensure, s far as possible. that it will have sufficient liquidiny 1 meet its liabilities when they are due, under both nornal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unaceeptable losses or nsking damage 1o the Group's reputation,

The Group's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, amd the cash fow that is wenerated from operations The (Group has managed its liquits and working capital requivements hrough
cash generated from operations and through intermitten short term borrow ings. The Group has sufficient short term fund based Tines, which provides healthy iquidity and these camy highest credit quality
rating from reputed credit rating agency, hence no liquiditg risk is perceived.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial labilities at the reporting date. The aniounts are gross and undiscounted. and include estimated interest pavments and exclude the

mpact nl'rbcllim__' aureements.

Contractu. low s
3 March 2023 Carrying amount 6 months or less  Duein6-12 Duein §-2 vear Due More than
months 2 years
Non-derivative financial lia
T'tade pavables 1287602 138,762 - - -
Lease liabilities S0 484 [11A] 1.350 659
141,861 1.39.246 [115] 1,350 659
Contractual cash flows
31 March 2022 Carrying amount 6 months or less  Duein6-12 Dueinl -2 year Due More than
months 2 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade pavables 1.24 544 1454 - - -
124,544 L24.544 - - -

iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prves. Market sk comprises of three types of risks: interest rate risk.
price risk and currency risk, Financial instruments affected by market risk includes trade recei able payable. other financial assets and liabilities. The Group is not exposed to any significant market risks,

Ineerest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fiture cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The interest rate risk can also impact the provision for
retiral benefits. The Giroup generally utilises fixed rate borrowings and therefore not subject to inferest rate risk, since neither the carnving amount nor the future cash Mows will Auctuate because of
change in the market imerest rates. The Group is not esposed W significant interest rate visk as at the respective repenting dales

Currency vivk

Foreign cumency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluciuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Exposures can arise on account of the various assets
and liabilities which are d inated in currencies other than Indian Rupee,

The following table shows Fargign currency exposures in USD on financial instruments at the end of the reporting period:

i} Foreign Currency Exposure:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
LUsSD Usp

Financial assets

Advance to suppliers {Rs ) - 28

Financial Liabilities

Trade PayableiRs.) 1911 11,851

Net Total {1.911) (11,823)

ii) Foreign Currency Sensitivity:
Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2022
Usn UsD

1%a Depreciation in INR
Impact on P&EL 19 (R

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
USD USD

1" Appreciation in INR
Impact on P&L {9 L8y

v, Capital Management
The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong eapital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and 1o sustain future development of the business. The Group moniters the returm on
capital and its abjective when managing capital is 1o maintain an optimal structure so as 10 masimize shareholder value,
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24 Conti inbi and ¢ i {to the extent not provided for}

As at Asat

ticula
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

a) Contingent Liabilities

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for
¢l Claims against the Company not acknowledped as debis
~Bank Guarantees given S0
The Company did not have any long term contracs including derivative contrats for which there were any material foreseeable losses,

COine af the subsidiany in the Group has given Bank guarantee ameunting to INR S50 to the financials partner towards its performance obligation,

25 Earnings per share (EPS)

The Following table sets forth the comp ion of basic and diluted earnings per share:

For the vear ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars

Eurnings
Loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders for caleulation of basic and diluted EPS (In INR Lakhs) HET (23,9446}

Shurey

Wetghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear for caleulation of basic EPS (In Lakhs) 631 [
Effect of dilutive p ial equity shares - -
Weighted average number of equity shares for caleulation of diluted EPS (In Lakhs) 681 681
Basic earnings per share £5.89 (35.17)
Diluted earnings per share 65.89 (35.17)
Nominal value per share * 10 10

* ~ominal value per share and weighted average number of equity shares as a1 31 March 2022 adjusted retrospectively for the purpose of caleulation of EPS on account of issue of bonus
shares and consolidation of shares. (Refer Note 10}

26 Related party disclosures
As per Indian Accounting Standard on related party disclosures (Ind AS 24), the names of the related parties of the Company are as follows:

A Names of related parties and description of relationship

Name Type

Giroww Inc [Haolding company

Groww Creditsers Technolowy Private Limited Enterprises having ke personne] in commeon
Lalit Keshre Key personnel

liarsh Jain Key management personnel

Neeraj Singh Key management personnel {w.e.f. 27 March 2023)

Ishan Bansal Key management personnel (w el 27 Maich 2023)

B The following (ransactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:

For the vear ended  For the vear ended

Nature of Transaction Related Party 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Groww Ine Investment in Equity Instruments including secun presmium . 1.37 461
Share based payments 1839 11256
Support services 148y {7
Groww Creditsers Technology Private Limited Rental income 18) =
Lalit Keshre Purchase of Equity Instruments of Groww Pay Serivee Private limited - |
Purchase of Equity Instruments of Nextbillion Technology Private Lasl 250
Limited
Purchase of equity instruments of Finments Tech Private Limited 1 -
Directors Remuneration™ 1) 143
Harsh Jain Purchase of Equity Instruments of Groww Pay Serivee Private limited - |
Purchase of Equity Instruments of Nextbillion Technalogy Private 995 AH)
Limited
Purchase of equity instruments of Finments Tech Private Limited 7 =
Directors Remuneration® 163 &
Neeraj Singh Purchase of Equity Instruments of Nexibillion Technology Private 434 3as
Limited
Purchase of equity instruments of Finments Tech Private Limited [ -
Remuneration® 169 143
Directors remuneration® 3 -
Ishan Bansal Purchase of Equity Instruments of Nexthillion Technology Private 556 325
Limited
Purchase of equity instruments of Finments Tech Private Limited 4 -
Directors remuneration® 3 -
Remuneration® 163 -
*The amount does not include provision for gratuity as the same is determined for the Company as whole based on actuarial valuation
D, Outstanding balances
Particulars Related Party vl Azat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Groww Inc, Trade Payable (1901 (443)
Trade receivables 4 -
Croww Creditsery Technology Private Limited T'rade receivables I =
/, \
[ A\
[ €
\C |
\ /
\ 4
b .
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27 Share Based Payments

All the Group's employees approved by the Board, are eligible for being considered for the grant of stock options under Groww Inc 2017 Stock Incentive Plan ("GSIP 2017")
administered by the Holding Company.

Stock options granted under GSIP 2017 would vest based on the terms and conditions mentioned in the respective Stock option Grant Notice, The holding company has issued fully
vested stock options and stock options with a vesting period of 12 - 4% months with a cliff of 12 months in graded manner. Vesting of options would be subject to continued
employment with a Company, The specific vesting schedule and conditions subject to which vesting would take place would be outlined in the document given to the option grantee at
the time of grant of options. The excercise price of the options granted during the year is USD 0,27,

For stock options issued under GSIP 2017, the weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was SI8.80 - $20.22 (March 31, 2022: £24.57). As at March 31, 2023, the
weighted average contractual remaining life of options is 1.45 - 3.75 vears.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the employees were provided option of cash or share based payment alternative for performance bonus, Pursuant to the same. the Company paid
performance bonus in the form of stock options amounting to INR 87 which is included as part of Salaries. allowances, incentives and bonus { 31 March 2022 - Nil

: the financial year:

Movement of share options duri

Particulars 3 March 2023 31 March 2022

Out ding as at the beginning of the year 24,006,739 18.17.114

- Granted 1.53.554 6.52.715

- Transferred in 7.06.162

- Repurchased - (39.834)
- Forfeited (7.96.700) (23.256)
Qutstanding as at the end of the vear 24.69.755 24.06,739

Vested as at the year end 20.28,102 16.57.697

Fair value of stock options granted

The fair value of the stock options granted is esti 1 at the grant date using arm'’s length price of the stock options computed based on the Black-Scholes model, taking into account

P

the terms and conditions upon which the stock options were vranted. The inputs used to measure fair values of options granted on the grant date were as follows:

The following table lists the inputs to the option pricing madels for the vear ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Dividend vield (% p.a.) % 0%,
Expected volatility (% p.a.) 37% - 43% 36%)
Risk-free interest rate (% p.a.} 2.28% - 4.22% 0.48%)|
|Expected life of option {vears) 2 2

28 Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) Expenses
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year is INR, | {March 31, 2022: Nil), There is no unspent amount at the beginning and at the year of the year,

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars In Cash Yet to be paid in cash  Total

Construction‘acquisition of any asset
On purpose of other than above 1 = |

For the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars In Cash Yet to be paid in cash  Total

Construction‘acquisition of any asset
On purpose of other than above = s &
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29 Leases

a)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conve e right to control the use ofan identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group’s lease asset classes consist of leases for premises. The Group assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract, To assess whether a contract
conveys the right (o control the use of an identified asset. the Group assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset {ii) the Group has substantially all of
the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset,

At the date of commencement of the leas  Group recognizes a right-ofuse asset ("ROL™) and a corresponding lease liability for all e
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-tenm leases) and low value leases,

s arrangements i which it is a lessee.

For these short-ternm and low value leases. the Group recognizes the lease pa 15 A4S AN Operatng expense on i straiy > basis over the term of the lease,

Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease tenm. ROU assets and lease liabilitics includes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised,

The right-of-use assels are i
are subsequently 1 at cost less acc

ially recognized at cost. which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any prepaid lease plus any initial direct costs, They
lated depreciation,

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the ¢ cment date on a straight-line basis over the lease tenn.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing
rite of the Group. Lease liabilities are re-measured with a comesponding adjustment 1o the related right of use asset if the Group changes its assessment on whether it will
exercise an extension or a tennination option,

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payinents of INR 539 Lakhs (March 31, 2022: INR 9 Lakhs) have been classified as
cash flow generated from financing activity.

Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting period by class

Particubirs Leasehold
s Property
Balance as on [st April 2022 5
3613
Deletions g
Depreciation {668}
Balance as on 315t March 2023 2,945
Particulars Leaschold
Propuerty
Balance as on 1st April 2021 10
Additions
Depreciation (10
Balance as on 3 st March 2022 =
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29 Leases (Continued)

b} Set out below are the carrying anwounts of lease liahilities and the movements during the period:

b

(4]

d)

¥

=

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

At the commmencement of the year - ]
Additions 3438 -
Aceretion of interest 200 =
Payments (5399 (9}
At the end of the year 3,099 2
Current 1.ORY -
Non-Current 2010 -
Maturity analysis of lease liabilites
Maturity analysis - Contractual undiscounted cash flows Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Less than one year 1.370 43
One to five years 2179 i
More than five vears - -
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31 March 2022 31,540 50
Lease liabilities included in the Balance sheet at 31 March 2022 3.099 <
Current 1.089
Non-current 2010
Amounts recognised in profit or loss

As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Interest on lease linbilities

Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows

200

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Total cash outflow for leases

539

]

The financial statements are presented in INR Lakhs (rounded off). Those items which are required to be disclosed and which were not presented in financial statements due to

rounding off to the nearest INR Lakhs are given below in INR:

Particulars

Note

As at / for the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Furnitures Additions 3A - 5381
Furnitures depreciation 3A - 47,293
Network Equipmenis Accumulated depreciation 3A - 49,371
Network Equif depreciation 3A - 14,078
Interest on income tax refund 16 - 3.564
Interest on lease liabilities 18 - 13851
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31 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
The Ministry of Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises has issued on Office Memurandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their
comespondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respeet of the amounts pavable to such enterprises as at
31 March 2023 has been made in the financial based on inft ion received and avaitable with the company. Further, in s view, the impact of interest. if any. that may be payable in
accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {'the Act') is not expected to be material,

Particulars Azt As.al
A1-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

The prinecipal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting vear

- Poncipal amount 8

- Interest due thereon "

Fhe amount of interest paid by the company along with the payment made 1o the supplier besond the appointed day during the

year -

The amaount of interest due and paxable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but bevond the

appoeinted day during the yeard but without adding the interest under this Act - <

Amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year = _

The amount of further interest remaining due and pasable even in the sieceeding years. till actually paid o the small enterprise.

for the purpose of disallow ance as a deductible expenditure -

Total vutstanding prneipal dues of micro enterpnses and small enterprises included in Trade Pavables (Note 12} 8 |

32 Segment reporting
The Group's operations predominantly relate to equity broking, mutual fund and its related activities. Accordingly, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) reviews the operations of the Group as Bro
and athers operating segment. The Company aperates in one peographic segment namely "within India” and hence no separate information for geopraphic seement wise disclosure is required.
|—I'ar| fculars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Broking Others Inter-Seg; Total Broking  |Others Inter-Segment [Total
Sewment revenue LSS G512 {89255} 127,780 34684 12,369 1246l A5.092
Segment profit before rax E 9,764 307 - 49,490 g 124.581) - (23,647)
Sepment assels 2.19.350 273246 (28,691 463,905 1.79.979 235171 (13.428) 3,909,725
|Seument liabilities 11.60.348) (18.872) 28691 | (1,50,530)] (1.28.318) 112.364) 13428 {1.27,154)

33 Business Combinations

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company achieved control over Finments Tech Private Limited {formerly known as Finvantage Investment Adviser Private Limitedh wee.f March 8, 2023, Finments
Tech Private Limited shall provide the Saa8 based activities and shall develop the technology ecossstem fioe Groww Companies and as well as other Companies in India.

Particulars Amount Amount

Assets taken over
Cash & Cash Equivalents 20
Investiments | 27

Liabilities taken over
Trade pavables |

Total identifiable net assets at fair value as at 26
March 08, 2023 (A)

Non - Controlling interest measured at proportionate share in 5
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identiliable net assets
(B)

Fair value of consideration (C) 16

Goodwill = (C}+ (B) - (A)* n

= Amount befow INR Lakhs

Goodwill represents the cost of acquired busi as established at the date of isition of the business in excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities, Gaodwill
is tested for impainment annually or when events or circumstances indicate that the implied fair value of goodwill is less than its carnving amount, Goodwill has been Lested for impairment based on the cash
flow forecasts of the related CGU and the recoverable amounts of these CGUS exceeded their camying amounts.
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34 Non controlling Interest

Set out below is summarised financial information for subsidiary Nextbillion Technology Private Limited that has non-controlling interest to the group. The

amount disclosed are before inter-company elimination.

Summarised balance sheet March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Ownership interest held by non controlling interest - 3.79%
Financial assets 2,15,398 1,79,193
Financial liabilities 1,59,053) (1,27,360)
Non financial assets 3,952 786
Non [inancial liabilities (1,295) (958)
Net assets 59,002 51.661
Non-controlling interest - 1,958

Summarised statement of profit or loss

March 31, 2023

Revenue 1.25.816 34,826
Profit for the year 7313 681

Other comprehensive income/(loss) 28 N
Total comprehensive income 7,341 680
Total comprehensive income allocated to non controlling interest 5 45

March 31, 2022

Summarised statement of cash flow

March 31, 2023

Cash flow from operating activities 21,572 (24,580)
Cash flow from investing activities {13,366) 1.069
Cash flow from financing activities (7 24,988
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 8,199 1,478

March 31, 2022

35 Additional information pursuant to requirement of Schedule I1I To The Companies Act, 2013 under general instructions for preparation of

Consolidated Financial Statements

Name of the entity Net Assets, i.e., total assets Share in profit or loss Share in other Share in total
minus total liabilities comprehensive income comprehensive income

As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount

consolidated consolidated consolidated consolidated

net assets profit or loss profit or loss profit or loss
Billionbrains  Garage Ventures 91% 2,86,208 88%) 39,658 52% 33 88%) 39,691
Private Limited
Subsidiaries
Nexthillion Technology Private 19%| 59,002 16% 7313 44% 28 16% 7.341
Limited
Groww IFSC Private Limited 0% 191 0% (6) 3%)| 2 0% (4)
MNeobillion  Fintech  Private 1% 3.406 -3% 1,545) 0% - -3% (1,545)
Limited
Groww Pay Service Private 1% 2,592 0% (77} 0% - 0% (77)
Limited
Groww Serv Private Limited 0% 467 -1%) (359) 0% - -1 %) (359)
{Formerly known as
Billionbrains  Capital  Private
Limited)
Billionblocks  Finserv  Private 0% 10 0% (28) 0% - 0% (28)
Limited
Groww AA Private Limited 0% 225 0% (5) 0% - 0% (5)
Groww  Insurance  Broking 0% 121 0% (4) 0% - 0%)| (4)
Private Limited
Finments Tech Private Limited 0| {44} 0% {700 0% 0% (70}
(Formerly know as Finvantage
Investment  Adviser  Private
Limited)
Subtotal 112% 352,178 100% 44,877 100% 63 100% 44,940
Adjustments  arising  out  of -12% (38,803) 0% - 0% - 0% .
consolidation
Less: Non-controlling interests 0% - 0%, (5) 0% - (%)
Total 100% 3,13,375 100% 44,872 100% 63 100%
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a})

b)

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to or
in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries") with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Group has not received any fund from any
parties (funding party) with the understanding that the Group shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or
behalf of the Group ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any gurantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries.

Subscquent events

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 232 read with Section 234 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other applicable provisions, read with National
Company Law Tribunal Rules, 2016 and Companies (Compromise, Arrangement, and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and enabling provisions in the Company's
Memorandum and Articles of Association vide Board Resolution dated April 12, 2023, the Board of Directors of the Company has approved the Scheme of
Amalgamation ("the Scheme") for amalgamation of Groww In¢, USA, pursuant to the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, USA ("Transferor
Company") with and into Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited ("the Company") or {"Transferce Company"). The C ompany has filed the Scheme
with National Company Law Tribunal on April 24, 2023.

Pursuant to Share Purchase Agreement dated May 11, 2021, between Nextbillion Technology Private Limited (“Company™) and Indiabulls Housing Finance
Limited (erstwhile Sponsor), and Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited for the acquisition of 100% sharcholding of Indiabulls Asset Management
Company Limited ("IAMCL™) and Indiabulls Trustee Company Limited (“ITCL"), all the necessary approval was received and accordingly, the Company
paid an aggregate purchase consideration of INR 175.62 crores {including cash and cash equivalents of INR 100.62 crores) for the acquisition of 100% share
capital of IAMCL and ITCL and all the equity shares stand to be transferred (Demat and physical) to Nextbillion Technology Private Limited on May 03,
2023, and pursuant to this IAMCL and ITCL have become the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company effective from May 03, 2023.

[Rnhil Alexander Lalit Keshre m Jain

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP Jfor and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Charggred Accountants Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Fimyg Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022 CIN: UT2900KA2018FTC 109343

¥ i J \-\,\} p/ .

Partner Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. : 222515 [DIN: 2483558 DIN: 05321547 Membership No. A26472
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai

Date: May 31, 2023 Date: May 31, 2023 Date: May 31, 2023 Date: May 31, 2023
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